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Yamagata Bank’s SDG Efforts

We manage our business with SUSTANABLE S| © prmmepemrersrww—ry,
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Business Plan. Let us introduce

some of our SDGs efforts from e ] R

: . e
various perspectives, sugh as ﬁ/" & >
initiatives to create value in our v

N\

region and to revitalize our [TEEE Y 165 J17 e [
regional community. == i &
D|re ¥ | ® KR

®\What are SDGs? ®Yamagata Bank and SDGs

It is an abbreviation for “Sustainable Development Goals,” In July 2019, the Yamagata Bank Group announced
a goal to which all UN member states aim to achieve by that it would work towards achieving SDGs as a
2030 in 17 areas such as poverty, education, and the regional community-based banking group. The
environment. It is set forth in “Transforming Our World: 20th Long-Term Business Plan also publicly
the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development” adopted by declared that efforts aimed at building a
the United Nations General Assembly in September 2015, sustainable regional community would help

with the fundamental principle to “Leave No One Behind”. achieve the 2030 SDGs targets.

Creating Value in our Region

* Supporting local manufacturing. FEE * Supporting management challenges

such as business succession.

* Donation to schools from the receiver

* Initiatives to support the creation of
fee of private bond. ;

e new businesses. =

fasy

Establishing a Solid Foundation for Growth and Reform

* Renewable energy initiatives. * Effective compliance programs.

* Strong risk management policies. * Accepting flexible working
styles and creating a good

working environment.

Revitalizing the Regional Community

* Supporting local sports through
activities of our women'’s basket-
ball team “Lyers”

* Education regarding financial &
economy. bt | gl

* Collaborative alliances of industry,
academia, government and prm
financial institutions.

* Forest conservation activities &
“Hiking in Hanagasa forest”.




Message from Management

We sincerely appreciate for your kind support of The

Yamagata Bank, Ltd.

The Yamagata Bank’s main area of operation is Yamagata
prefecture, which is located in the southern portion of
Japan’s Tohoku region, about 300 kilometers north of
Tokyo. Our head office is situated in Yamagata city, a close
neighbor to Sendai City (of Miyagi prefecture), the largest
city in the Tohoku region with which it has close economic
ties. The population of Yamagata prefecture is approxi-
mately 1.07 million and it has a flourishing agricultural
industry, known for growing rice and cherries, as well as
manufacturing, producing a wide variety of products ranging

from electronics to traditional crafts.

Japan'’s economy in fiscal 2020 experienced severe change
due to the worldwide spread of Covid-19, but during the
latter half of the fiscal year, it gradually recovered amidst a
difficult severe situation. Yamagata prefecture’s economy
also fell sharply due to the spread of Covid-19, but the
latter half of the fiscal year saw an improvement in corpo-
rate production activity and the economy showed a gradual
recovery. However, at present, both the domestic economy
and the local economy are slowing down due to restrictions

on economic activities due to the further waves of Covid-19.

As the economy and society suffer drastic changes due to
Covid-19 and the declining population, an increasing
number of business operators are reviewing their business
plans. Recognizing the challenges and needs of such
businesses, We are focusing not only on funding support
but also on more in-depth efforts such as helping to improve

their management and to transition their businesses.

This April, we began implementing our 20th long-term
business plan “Transform” (FY2021-2023). Our raison
d’étre (business purpose) is to contribute to regional devel-
opment and growth. As a company with the responsibility to
promote Yamagata's growth, we aim to help achievement of
a sustainable local community, evermore focused on
regional revitalization while also strengthening our policies
for addressing ESG (environment, society, governance) and

SDGs (Sustainable Development Goals).

We would appreciate it if you could encourage and support

us as ever.

Kichishige Hasegawa
President

.



Management policies
20th Long-Term Business Plan: "'Transform"

(April 2021 - March 2024)

Business Resources ) Business Model

Supporting The Yamagata
Bank (end of March, 2021)

@ Financial Capital

Trusted Reliability and Safety

-Capital adequacy ratio (Basel lll Domestic
Standards, non-consolidated) 10.34%
-Credit Rating (Japan Credit Rating
Agency, Ltd.) A+

eHuman Resources

Financial expertise and broad ranged
proposal generating capability
Organizational system corresponding
to diversity

*Number of employees 1,232

-Utilizing specialist qualifications
1st grade of Certified Financial Planner, Securities
analysts, Real estate appraisers, Small and
medium enterprise management consultants,
Real estate transaction agent, Certified public
accountants, etc.

+ Awarded Platinum “Kurumin” certification
First time ever to be awarded in Japan:April
2015

+Health and productivity superior
corporation (Large corporation division):
Certified, 4 consecutive years

9 Knowledge Resources

Group management system capable of
providing comprehensive financial
information services

*Group companies 7 companies
*History and tradition founded 125
years ago

@Social Resources

Abundant network of branches and
high market share

*Number of branch offices 81 branches
*Number of ATM devices 299 units
-Unmanned service areas 128 locations

Management Grow angl deve_lop together with the regional
Phil h community, satisfy all of our customers, and
[OSORIY give our employees stability and opportunities.

Creating a sustainable regional community Achi
(Regional revitalization and regional economic renewal / development) Val

Establishing a New

Achieving Hybrid

Responding to COVID-19 and

20th Long-Term
Business Plan
April 2021 to March 2024

Key Strategy 1: Key Strategy 2:

Staying close and
supporting our
customers amidst
the COVID-19 and
post-COVID
challenges.

Efforts to strengthen
our consulting
business and expand
the range of our
business services.

This 20th long-term business plan is po
heading toward 2030, aiming to respond
a hybrid company, in a manner that conne



We established our 20th long-term business plan: "Transform" as a plan to cover a three-year period
(April 2021 to March 2024). This is Phase 1 of a long-term vision heading toward 2030, to assist the
regional economy and company management in the recovery from Covid-19, pursuing a sustainable
business model with the aim of becoming a hybrid company offering financial / business participation.

Providing Value to Our

Stakeholders
A hybrid company offering financial / business
Long-Term I .
. . participation that creates value together with our M . .
customers and maximizes the potential of our region. N4 Our Reglonal Commumty
N *Working for sustainable development;

regional renewal.

= . . -Revitalization of regional economy;
eving Customer-oriented business and nurturing industry.
ue creation of added-value -Commitment to environmental
protection.
Business Model @ Our Customers

_ ‘Creating value together with our

C customers by helping to resolve their
ompany issues.

-Supporting stable asset building and
asset succession for our customers.

Challenging the Hybrid Company

@ Our Shareholders

*Increasing our medium to long term
corporate value.

0 Our Employees and Officers

-Positive work environment.
+Supporting broad employee training
efforts.

+Supporting various working styles and
diversity.

Key Strategy 3: Key Strategy 4: Our Commitment to Achieving ESG
Management and SDGs

Structural reform and More sophisticated
cost management to securities investment Aiming to improve corporate value over
provide high quality and risk management, the medium to long term and create a

services. and utilization of risk

J sustainable society, we are working to
appetite framework.

help resolving social issues related to the
Environment/Social/Governance. As a
regional community-based banking group,

sitioned as Phase 1 of a |ong_term vision we will strive to achieve a sustainable
to Covid-19 and the challenge of becoming B T edivallie for

.. society through our corporate activities
cts to our vision. and commitments toward SDGs.
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The Yamagata Bank, Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Five-Year Financial Highlights

Yen:In millions except per share data and percentages
U.S. dollars:In thousands except per share data and percentages

Years ended March 31

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2021

For the fiscal year: (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Ordinary iNCOME ++«+veerrmermneriniiiiiiiia ¥ 41,225 ¥ 44,041 ¥ 47,354 ¥ 42,488 ¥ 45886 §$ 372,373
Ordinary EXpeNSES ««+xresrerrerrimrintinrianiiiain. 36,386 39,406 41,391 35,350 37,802 328,665
Profit before income taxes:«-+«-+-veveeeininininnn. 4,264 4,468 5910 6,992 8,034 38,519
Profit attributable to owners of parent ----..evnvenne. 2,852 2,537 4,020 4,988 5,473 25,769

At the fiscal year-end

ASSELS  +evrrrerernnerrneetriae et et aaaaan ¥ 3,128,968 ¥ 2,653,119 ¥ 2,576,980 ¥ 2,618,179 ¥2,612,784 $28262744
Loans and bills discounted ------.oeevveiiineeinnns 1,739,782 1,713,248 1,699,188 1,726,334 1,674,250  15714,770
SECUIEIES ++vvvevrrererrnnerrrieereiieeriieeesieeeeraessans 901,513 758,083 677,078 732,995 717,552 8,143,013
Liabilities «+vvveeereemermmeni 2,967,155 2,505,412 2,420,219 2,460,737 2,459,270 26,801,152
DEPOSITS  «vveerrrrmnnseerrmiineettiiiiee e 2,579,349 2,267,133 2,212,792 2,206,819 2,180,460 23,298,251
NEE QSSELS <+ v v eveverenememeneneneneneneeeneneneneeaeans 161,812 147,706 156,761 157,442 153,514 1,461,591
Amounts per share (Yen) (US. dollars)
Cash diVIdENdS  covvvrrreeemmmiiiiiii e, ¥ 30.00 ¥ 30.00 ¥ 35.00 ¥ 21.00 ¥ 7.00 $ 0.27
Profit attributable to owners of parent..----.--...... 87.50 77.86 123.36 153.04 167.74 0.79
Diluted profit attributable to owners of parent -.- - - 110.01 136.52 149.68 -
NET ASSETS -+ vrrrrrrrreaeeeteeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeaaa, 4,957.12 4,526.62 4,804.85 4,825.85 4,705.09 4478

Ratios: 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Capital adequacy ratio (Domestic standard) ------ 10.79% 11.02% 11.59% 11.61% 12.11%

Notes 1 : U.S. dollars represent transactions, for the convenience of readers, at ¥ 110.71=U.S.$1.00 the rate prevailing on March 31, 2021.
2 : Effective October 1, 2017, the Bank executed the 1-for-5 stock consolidation. Per share information except cash dividends is calculated under assumption that the stock
consolidation had taken effect at the preceding fiscal year.
3 : Effective October 1, 2017, the Bank executed the 1-for-5 stock consolidation. The dividend of ¥21.00 per share for March 31, 2018 is the sum of the intermediate dividend
of ¥3.50 and the year-end dividend of ¥ 17.50, with the interim dividend ¥ 3.50 being the pre-merger dividend, and the year-end dividend ¥ 17.50 the post-merger dividend.

4 : Diluted profit attributable to owners of parent for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 is not listed because there are no potentially dilutive shares.

Profit attributable to owners of parent Net assets
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
The Yamagata Bank , Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Yamagata Bank , Ltd.
and its consolidated subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at March 31, 2021, and the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes

in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at March 31, 2021, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Japan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of the audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming the auditor’s opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Classification of borrowers for the purpose of determining the allowance for loan losses for
borrowers with concerns about business performance

Description of Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

The Group is engaged in the banking business | In  considering the classification of
with a business base mainly in Yamagata | borrowers, our audit procedures consisted
prefecture, of which the lending business is the | primarily of the following:

core business activity. The loans included in
the consolidated balance sheet at the end of the
current consolidated fiscal year was

* We obtained an understanding, evaluated
the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the controls over the




1,739,782 million yen (55.6% of total assets).
The collectability of loans recorded by the
Group are subject to uncertainties due to
economic trends in Japan and
overseas, especially in certain areas, changes
in the financial and economic environment
such as interest rates and stock
prices, deterioration in business performance
and financial position of borrowers depending
on success or failure of business and changes
in the values of collateral such as real estate.
Also, the recent impact of COVID-19 on
economic activities may have a significant
impact on the performance of borrowers.

As such, the Group calculates the amount of
expected loans that won’t be collected, based
on the classification of borrowers, status of
credit protection and the actual rate of loss and
records them as an allowance for loan losses.

The allowance for loan losses included in the
consolidated balance sheet at the end of the
current consolidated fiscal year was
9,907 million yen as described in Section g
“Allowance for Loan Losses” and Section v
“Significant Accounting Estimates” of Note
3 to the consolidated financial
statements,  “Summary of  Significant
Accounting Policies”.

The allowance for loan losses is calculated in
accordance with the Group’s predetermined
standards for self-assessment and write-offs
and allowance. The calculation process
includes the determination of the classification
of borrowers which is determined by
evaluating the business performance, financial
position and repayment status of borrowers
and future prospects.

Since it takes a considerable period of time for
the COVID-19 situation to return to
normal, the Group expects that a certain
impact on economic activities in its operating
areas will continue. The classification of
borrowers is determined based on future
prospects of the business performance of
individual borrowers considering such impact.

Group's borrower classification process.
The controls tested included but were not
limited to those controls over the accuracy
and completeness of the schedules used in
determining the borrower classification
and controls over the underlying credit
rating data.

We discussed with the management and
departments in  charge of  the
loan, considering available external
information such as economic forecasts in
order to evaluate the Group's assumptions
regarding when the situation of COVID-
19 will return to normal.

We selected a sample of borrowers by
taking into account the type of
business, business region, the repayment
status, the degree of deterioration in their
business performance or financial position
and data reported by business branches on
the impact of the spread of COVID-19 on
the borrower's business performance. We
also considered monetary impact of the
changes in borrower classification on the
amount recorded in the allowance for loan
losses.

We evaluated data regarding sampled
borrowers’ recent repayment
status, financial position, and business
performance, by inspecting a set of
materials related to the Group's self -
assessment, such as explanatory materials
including a  description of the
business, borrowing and repayment
status, research materials providing an
understanding  of actual financial
position, financial statements, and the trial
balance. In addition, we made inquiries to
the department in charge of the loan as
necessary to confirm our understanding.

We considered the reasonableness and
feasibility assessments taking into account
the impact of COVID-19 on forecasts of
major items such as sales, cost of
sales, selling, general and administrative
expenses in  business improvement




In addition, when a borrower has prepared
business improvement plans, the
reasonableness and feasibility of the business
improvement plans are evaluated and
considered as important factors in
determination of the classification of
borrowers.

The  future  prospects for  business
performance, including evaluation of the
reasonableness and feasibility of business
improvement plans of borrowers with
concerns about business performance is highly
dependent on uncertainty and management's
judgment since it is affected by changes in the
business environment surrounding borrowers
such as the effects of COVID-19 and the
success or failure of the borrowers' business
strategies, etc.

In addition, if the borrower -classification
deteriorates, the allowance for loan losses will
increase, which may have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial position and
operating results.

Accordingly, we have identified the
classification of borrowers for the purpose of
determining the allowance for loans
losses, particularly with concerns about
business performance as a Key Audit Matter.

plans, etc., for borrowers who have
prepared business improvement plans, etc.
Our procedures also consisted of
conducting trend analysis from past
results, evaluating whether the borrower
had historically achieved its previous
business improvement plans, analysis of
the latest monitoring conducted by the
group and comparison with available
external information on the industry to
which the borrowers belong.

Responsibilities of Management, the Audit and Supervisory Committee for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

Or €1T0T.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and disclosing, as required by accounting principles
generally accepted in Japan, matters related to going concern.

The Audit and Supervisory Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

+ Consider internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for our risk assessments, while the purpose of the audit of
the consolidated financial statements is not expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Supervisory Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Supervisory Committee with a statement that we have complied
with the ethical requirements regarding independence that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Japan, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.




From the matters communicated with the Audit and Supervisory Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Interest Required to Be Disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan

Our firm and its designated engagement partners do not have any interest in the Group which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of
Japan.

Convenience Translation

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to
the year ended March 31, 2021 are presented solely for convenience. Our audit also included the
translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion, such translation
has been made on the basis described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Ernst & Young ShinNihon LLC
Tokyo, Japan

June 24, 2021

() PPN

/s/ Morio Sato
Designated Engagement Partner
Certified Public Accountant

B

AN S

/s/ Ken Komatsuzaki
Designated Engagement Partner
Certified Public Accountant




Corporate Data

Management
(As of June 24, 2021)
President Directors
Kichishige Hasegawa Tsutomu Komagome
Toshiyuki Komatsu
Senior Managing Director Tomokazu Kan
Yumiko Inoue
Shinichiro Miura Keitaro Harada
Takuro Taruishi (Full-time Audit and Surpervisory Committee Member)
Managing Directors Yasumasa Gomi (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member)
Gisuke Ohara (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member)
Satoshi Nagai Junichi Matsuda (Audit and Supervisory Committee Menber)
Hiroshi Koya Masanori Oshino (Audit and Supervisory Committee Member)
Yoshitaka Misawa
Eiji Sato

Yutaka Touyama
Izumi Hasegawa

Organization

(As of June 24, 2021)

—[ Secretariat ]

—[ Corporate Management Center ]

General Meeting of Shareholders

Audit and Supervisory Committee]

Corporate Planning Division

Board of Directors Governance Committee ]

Risk Management Division

Compliance Division

Executive Committee

Senior Managing Director
Managing Directors

—[ Human Resources & General Administration Division

—[ Business Planning Division

—[ Business Support Division

—[ Financial Markets Division
| credit Division

[ Auditing Division ] —[ Operation Administration Division

—[ System Planning Division

—[ Tokyo Liaison Office

—[ Head Office Sales Division

—[ Branches

— U J U U U




Review of Operations
The Conditions of Consolidated Accounts

The general situa-
tion in this term
(from April 1, 2020
to March 31, 2021)

Deposits and negotiable certifi-

cates of deposit

The year-end consolidated balance of
deposits and negotiable certificates of
deposit increased by ¥291.9 billion
to ¥2,660.1 billion, mainly due to an
increase in personal deposits and
corporate deposits.

Deposited financial assets

The year-end consolidated balance of
deposited financial assets increased
by ¥11.0 billion during the year to ¥
278.4 billion, mainly due to an increase
in investment trust.

Loans and bills discounted

The year-end consolidated balance of
loans and bills discounted increased by
¥26.5 billion to ¥1,739.7 billion. Although
loans to public entities decreased, loans
to corporations increased.

Securities

As a result of promoting investments in
assets likely to be profitable, such as
investment trusts, etc., there was a ¥
143.4 billion increase during the
consolidated fiscal year, with a final
balance of ¥901.5 billion at the end of
the accounting period.

Profit and loss

The consolidated ordinary income
decreased by ¥2,815 million from the
previous year to ¥41,225 million,
mainly due to a decrease in gain on
sales of bonds. Consolidated ordinary
expenses decreased by ¥3,020 million
from the previous year to ¥36,386
million, mainly due to a decrease in
expenses on derivatives other than for
trading or hedging related to bonds
and provision of allowance for loan
losses.

As a result, consolidated ordinary profit
increased by ¥204 million during the
year to ¥4,838 million, and consoli-
dated profit attributable to owners of
parent increased by ¥315 million
during the year to ¥2,852 million.

Results by business segment

In the banking business, ordinary
income for the fiscal year was ¥34,581
million, which was ¥2,536 million less
than that for the previous fiscal year;
segment profit for the fiscal year was ¥
4,329 million, which was ¥436 million
more than that for the previous fiscal
year.

In the leasing business, ordinary
income for the fiscal year was ¥6,015
million, which was ¥28 million more
than that for the previous vyear;
segment profit for the fiscal year was ¥
205 million, which was ¥80 million
more than that for the previous fiscal
year.

In the credit guarantee business, ordinary
income for the fiscal year was ¥947
million, which was ¥18 million less than
that for the previous fiscal year; segment
profit for the fiscal year was ¥686 million,
which was ¥21 million less than that for
the previous fiscal year.

In other business sectors, ordinary
income for the fiscal year was ¥1,503

million, which was ¥53 million more
than that for the previous fiscal year;
segment profit for the fiscal year was ¥
205 million, which was ¥70 million
more than that for the previous fiscal
year.

Cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
was positive at ¥440.1 billion, mainly
due to a net increase in deposits.

Cash flows from investing activities
was negative at ¥132.9 billion, due to
the purchase of securities exceeding
the proceeds from sales and redemp-
tion of securities.

Cash flows from financing activities
was negative at ¥0.9 billion, mainly
due to dividends paid.

As a result of the above, the year-end
consolidated balance of cash and cash
equivalents increased by ¥306.2
billion to ¥381.9 billion during the
fiscal year.
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The Yamagata Bank,Ltd.,and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets

2021

(Millions of yen)

2020

(Millions of yen)

2021

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)(Note2)

Cash and due from banks (NOte 19) «+wrrrevrrrmmii
Call loans and bills bought
Monetary claims bought ...........................................................................
MONEY Neld N TIUST «+vveeeeerrrrrerreeeiiiii
Securities (Note 4, 5, 7, 11 and 22) -+
Loans and bills discounted (Note 6 and 7) ---
Foreign exchanges -« e
Other @sSets (NOTE 7)  vrervrrrrrerreiie i
Property, plant and equipment (NOte 10) -«
Buildings, net (Note 9)
Land (NOTE 8)  «vvvereeermmmmretetiiiiiiiii i
CONSIIUCTION IN PIOGIESS «+rvrverresresssseasrintiitiit i
Other, net (Note 9)
Intangible assets
Software «----eeeeee

Assets for retirement benefits (NOte 26) «w-vroveevrrresini
Deferred tax assets (NOte 27) v
Customer's liabilities for acceptances and guarantees -««+««++«w+sweeveeseeens
AllOWANCE TOr 108N [OSSES  ++vvrrerrrerrrnmmermninattiiietii ettt et

¥ 394,592
1,465
7,584
1,261

901,513
1,739,782
774
53,153
15,419
3,858
8,320
1,658
1,582
3,540
3,324
215
1,336
389
18,060
(9,907)

¥ 86,123
1,310
8,051

481
758,083
1,713,248
2,491
52,907
15,445
3,802
8,782
1,082
1,777
3,554
3,346
207
1,965
19,281
(9,824)

$ 3,564,200
13,238
68,512
11,398

8,143,013
15,714,770
6,999
480,117
139,277
34,850
75,152
14,977
14,297
31,978
30,029
1,949
12,075
3,521
163,134
(89,493)

ASSELS  cervterrettiiii s s

¥ 3,128,968

¥ 2653119

$ 28,262,744

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities
DEPOSILS (NOLE 7) «rrsvvrresssreeemiieeiiiii e ¥ 2,579,349 ¥ 2,267,133 $ 23,298,251
Negotiable certificates of deposit 80,834 101,111 730,147
Call money and bills SOI «---«xveeeeeimmmirrieiiii 1,992 19,589 18,000
Payables under securities lending transactions (Note 7) ««---oeeeeerevmienenieens 8,318 65,505 75,136
Borrowed money (Note 7) 258,073 13,505 2,331,076
Foreign exchanges ....................................................................................... 36 29 330
Other liabilities ««:coceeeeerrermnrmiiiiiiiii e 15’378 1 6!790 138’909
Provision for bonuses for directors 22 22 203
Liabilities for retirement benefits (NOte 26) ««--------vvvrrreeriiiiiiis 52 468 476
Provision for retirement benefits for directors -« 10 9 98
Provision for share payments of board incentive plan -« 96 101 872
Provision for reimbursement of deposits ---««wwweeevmmmrrieeni 122 168 1,105
Provision for Contingent [0SS  «+-++++-vvreesvmrimiiiiiii 290 304 2,627
Provision for point SErvice Program ««««««.. oo 53 50 486
Provision for loss on interest repayment ---«--ceeoeeevvmvmrnii 56 56 510
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 27) 3,248 13 29,338
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation (Note 8) -----eeeerreevnineiiiiniiiinnn. 1,156 1,270 10,445
Acceptance and SUArantEes ------oooeoeeeeeersssieiiiiii 18,060 19,281 163,134
Liabhiliti@s «cvcevveereereremimmiiiii ¥ 2,967,155 ¥ 2‘505’41 2 $ 26,801 ’1 52
Net Assets
Shareholders' equity (Note 17 and 31)
Share capital ----- ¥ 12,008 ¥ 12,008 $ 108,468
Capital surplus 10,215 10,215 92,276
Retained @arnings  :««++ - wrrersrrremrteiiiit ittt 127,139 125,128 1,148,397
Treasury SIAMES  <+vvveeemeeem ettt (3,1 42) (3’1 73) (28,389)
Shareholders' equity 146,220 144,179 1,320,753
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (Note 22) --------------- 15,068 6,865 136,107
Deferred gains or 10SSES ON NEAGES  «++++wwveeeeserrismessiniiisiii, (839) (3,267) (7,585)
Revaluation reserve for land (NOte 8)  «+«wrrrvrrerrmnmniii 972 1,109 8,780
Retirement benefits liability adjustments -« v 225 (1,342) 2,040
Accumulated other COmMPrenensive INCOME «««««rxrwreersrrrsrnsises 15,426 3,365 139,342
NON-CONTrOINNG INTEIESTS -+ vvvrerveeeeeeii 165 161 1,496
NEE @SSEIS  rrererrrrrriririi ¥ 161,812 ¥ 147,706 $ 1,461,591
L|ab|||t|es and net assets ........................................................................... ¥ 3,128’968 ¥ 2’653’1 19 $ 28’262’744




Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

For the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Consolidated Statements of Income

Ordinary INCOIM@ - s s e

INTEIEST INCOMIE «+vverrerretn ettt e
Interest on loans and discounts -+
Interest and dividends on securities -
Interest on call loans and bills bought
Interest on receivables under resale agreements «««««--ooeeeeereei
Interest on deposits With DaNKS ««+««+-veeevremmii
Other INtErest INCOME  ++++rvrrrrrerrerie i

FEES AN COMMUISSIONS «++++xrrreeessrrrrrrreeeiiiiiittteaaiiiiite e e ettt eeessiiibee e e

Other ordinary 107070 001 R T T PPt

(01072 107070 810 TR TR N
Recoveries of written off receivables ---
Other (NOLE 12)  evvrrrreeeiiiiiii i

Ordinary EXPEINSES o vvreeeetiisiiisie

Interest EXPEINISES +++rsrnrerseee sttt ettt
Interest on deposits .................................................................................
Interest on negotiable certificates of depOSit -++-++vrwwvveerrerr
Interest on call money and bills SOId -« veervrrrs
Interest on payables under securities lending transactions -+ oo
Interest on borrowings and rediSCOUNTS «+-««««x-vvermrrris
Other interest EXPENSES  ++rvvreeerrrre ettt

Fees and commissions payments -«

Other ordinary EXpENSES  ++--ovoeveeereeereeniiiiee

General and administrative expenses (Note 13) -

Other EXPEINISES ++sesrrrsrseessstttt ettt
Provision of allowance for 10an 10SSES <+« + rterreerrerrieriinii
Other (NOLE 14) +oovrrrrereeiiiiii

Ordinary proﬁt ....................................................................................

Extraordinary 07000 01 = TR T T TR T T T PPN
(0] 1 07=) ST T T T PN
Extraordinary JOSSES  cvcevrerererentntiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s
Loss on disposal of non-current assets -
|mpairment loss (Note 15) .....................................................................

Profit before income taxes -

INCOME TAXES-CUITEINT <« v v vereemementetet e
Income taxes-deferred (Note 27) ............................................................
INCOME TAXES - cvcereerereremtetmtaniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiittiaeiiiitsiastiaeiaseinias

Profit oo

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
Profit attributable to owners of parent oo

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

PROFIt <o
Other comprehensive income (NOte 16)  «r-vrovrrrreiri
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities -«
Deferred gains or 10SSES 0N NEAZES  ++++xwrvrerrrirersnrii
Retirement benefits liability adjustments -«
COMPrENENSIVE INCOME «++++++veveereeitaiieiieiieit i
Comprehensive income attributable to owners of parent «-------ooeeeeeene
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests ------------

2021 2020 2021
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)(Note2)
¥ 41,225 ¥ 44,041 $ 372,373
24,444 25,085 220,799
16,826 17,161 151,982
7,434 7,716 67,149
(4) 77 (37)
(0) (1) (2)
89 12 809
99 118 898
7,422 7,507 67,047
7,526 9,931 67,982
1,831 1,516 16,543
17 16 153
1,814 1,500 16,389
36,386 39,406 328,665
1,350 2,115 12,195
494 643 4,462
12 19 110
37 7 337
54 486 491
90 163 816
661 795 5,976
2,582 2,594 23,326
8,012 9,624 72,370
22,437 21,767 202,671
2,004 3,305 18,101
765 1,735 6,918
1,238 1,570 11,182
4,838 4,634 43,708
— 3 —
— 3 —
574 169 5,188
34 165 309
540 3 4,879
4,264 4,468 38,519
1,936 1,330 17,487
(528) 597 (4,775)
1,407 1,927 12,711
2,857 2,541 25,808
4 3 39
¥ 2,852 ¥ 2,537 $ 25,769
¥ 2,857 ¥ 2,541 $ 25,808
12,198 (10,539) 110,188
8,202 (9,514) 74,091
2,427 (566) 21,929
1,568 (458) 14,167
15,056 (7,997) 135,996
15,051 (8,001) 135,957
4 3 39

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 1 3



Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Shareholders' equity

(Millions of yen)

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Share capital Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Treasury shares

Total Shareholders'

equity
Balance as of April 1, 2020 «-+-ceeeeeeeeeees ¥ 12,008 ¥ 10,215 ¥ 125,128 ¥ (3,173) ¥ 144,179
Changes during period
Dividends of SUrplUS «++--svveeeeeernenen (980) (980)
Profit attributable to owners
Of parent ....................................... 2’852 2,852
Acquisition of treasury shares «---------- (1) (1)
Disposal of treasury shares «-:--ceceeeeeee 31 31
Reversal of revaluation reserve
forland cceeeeeeerrreeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii, 137 137
Net changes in items other than
sharehol ers' equrty ........................
Total changes during period--- — - 2,010 30 2,040
Balance as of March 31, 2021 ¥ 12,008 ¥ 10,215 ¥ 127,139 ¥ (3,142) ¥ 146,220

Shareholders' equity

(Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 2)

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Share capital Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Total shareholders'
Treasury shares

equity
Balance as of April 1, 2020 «---+seeeeeeeeeees $ 108,468 $ 92,276 $ 1,130,239 § (28,664) $ 1,302,319
Changes during period
Dividends Of SUPIUS ««++ssseessseeessnneenes (8,855) (8,855)
Profit attributable to owners
Of parent «++eeerereseerererniiinniiiiii 25,769 25,769
Acquisition of treasury shares ««+---«---: (9) 9)
Disposal of treasury shares -:::::::++ 284 284
Reversal of revaluation reserve
for |and .......................................... 1 ’244 1’244
Net changes in items other than
sharehol ers' equ|ty ........................
Total changes during period - - 18,158 275 18,433
Balance as of March 31, 2021 «--«eeeeveeee: $ 108,468 $ 92,276 $ 1,148,397 $ (28,389) $ 1,320,753

Shareholders' equity

(Millions of yen)

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Share capital Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Treasury shares Total shareholders'

equity
Balance as of April 1, 2019 «ccveeeecereeens ¥ 12,008 ¥ 10,215 ¥ 123,665 ¥ (3,178) ¥ 142,711
Changes during period
Dividends of SUIpIUS ««««+«ssssssssssseenns (1,062) (1,062)
Profit attributable to owners
of parent ....................................... 2,537 2,537
Acquisition of treasury shares «-----+----- 1) (1)
Disposal of treasury shares «-:--coceeeeeee 6 6
Reversal of revaluation reserve
for land ceeeeeeerrrrreeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii, (12) (12)
Net changes in items other than
shareholders' equrty ........................
Total changes during period :«««-«+--eeeeeee — — 1,463 5 1,468
Balance as of March 31, 2020 -+««««+eeeeeeet ¥ 12,008 ¥ 10,215 ¥ 125,128 ¥ (3,173) ¥ 144,179

1 4 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



For the year ended March 31, 2021

Balance as of April 1, 2020 «-+cecoveeeecenees
Changes during period
Dividends of surplus

Profit attributable to owners
of parent

Acquisition of treasury shares «-«--««----
Disposal of treasury shares «--:-ceeeeeeeee

Reversal of revaluation reserve
for land

Net changes in items other than
shareholders’ equity

Total changes during period
Balance as of March 31, 2021

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Balance as of April 1, 2020 «+:-ceeveeeeereees
Changes during period
Dividends of surplus

Profit attributable to owners
of parent

Acquisition of treasury shares «-««------+
Disposal of treasury shares

Reversal of revaluation reserve
for land

Net changes in items other than
shareholders’ equity

Total changes during period «««««:-ceceeeeeees
Balance as of March 31, 2021 ««-ceceeeeeees

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Balance as of April 1, 2019 «ccveeveerenenns
Changes during period
Dividends of surplus

Profit attributable to owners
of parent

Acquisition of treasury shares
Disposal of treasury shares ---:-ceeeeeeee

Reversal of revaluation reserve
for land

Net changes in items other than
shareholders’ equity

Total changes during period - ««««---cceeeeees
Balance as of March 31, 2020 -+«-+c-ceveeee

Accumulated other comprehensive income

(Millions of yen)

Valuation difference . . Retirement benefits ~ Total accumulated )
. Deferred gains or Revaluation - - Non-controlling Total net
on available-for-sale liability other comprehensive .
; losses on hedges  reserve for land . ) interests assets
securities adjustments income
¥ 6,865 ¥ (3,267) ¥ 1,109 ¥ (1,342) ¥ 3,365 ¥ 161 ¥ 147,706
(980)
2,852
(1)
31
137
8,202 2,427 (137) 1,568 12,061 4 12,065
8,202 2,427 (137) 1,568 12,061 4 14,106
¥ 15,068 ¥ (839) ¥ 972 ¥ 225 ¥ 15,426 ¥ 165 ¥ 161,812
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 2)
Valuatilon diference Deferred gains or Revaluation Retirenllenltl benefs ~ Total accumulatgd Non-controlling Total net
on available-for-sale liability other comprehensive )
o losses on hedges  reserve for land . . interests assets
securities adjustments income
$ 62015 $ (29515) $ 10,024 $ (12,126) $ 30,398 §$ 1,457 $ 1,334,175
(8,855)
25,769
9)
284
1,244
74,091 21,929 (1,244) 14,167 108,943 39 108,982
74,091 21,929 (1,244) 14,167 108,943 39 127,416
$ 136,107 $ (7,585) $ 8,780 $ 2,040 $ 139342 § 1,496 $ 1,461,591
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Millions of yen)
Valuatilon diference Deferred gains or Revaluation Retiren}enltl benefits  Total accumulatgd Non-controlling Total net
on available-for-sale liability other comprehensive .
o losses on hedges  reserve for land . ) interests assets
securities adjustments income
¥ 16,379 ¥  (2,701) ¥ 1,097 ¥ (883) ¥ 13,892 ¥ 157 ¥ 156,761
(1,062)
2,537
(1)
6
(12)
(9,514) (566) 12 (458) (10,526) 3 (10,522)
(9,514) (566) 12 (458) (10,526) 3 (9,054)
¥ 6,865 ¥ (3,267) ¥ 1,109 ¥ (1,342) ¥ 3,365 ¥ 161 ¥ 147,706

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 1 5



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended March 31.2021 and 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income taxes
Depreciation
Impairment loss
Increase (decrease) in allowance for loan losses
Increase (decrease) in provision for bonuses for directors
Decrease (inecrease) in assets for retirement benefits
Increase (decrease) in liabilities for retirement benefits
Increase (decrease) in provision for retirement benefits for directors
Increase (decrease) in provision for share payments of board incentive plan
Increase (decrease) in provision for loss due to returning interests
Increase (decrease) in provision for reimbursement of deposits
Increase (decrease) in provision for contingent loss
Increase (decrease) in provision for point service program
Interest income
Interest expenses
Loss (gain) related to securities
Loss (gain) on money held in trust
Foreign exchange loss (gain) , net
Loss (gain) on disposal of non-current assets
Net decrease (increase) in loans and bills discounted
Net increase (decrease) in deposits
Net increase (decrease) in negotiable certificates of deposit
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (excluding subordinated borrowings)
Net decrease (increase) in due from banks (excluding due from Bank of Japan)
Net decrease (increase) in call loans
Net increase (decrease) in call money
Net increase (decrease) in payables under securities lending transactions
Net decrease (increase) in trading account securities
Net decrease (increase) in foreign exchanges-assets
Net increase (decrease) in foreign exchanges-liabilities
Interest received
Interest paid
Other
Subtotal
Income taxes paid
Income taxes refunded
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of securities
Proceeds from sales of securities
Proceeds from redemption of securities
Increase in money held in trust
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Payments for retirement of property, plant and equipment
Expenditure for acquisition of intangible assets
Payments for asset retirement obligations

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Redemption of bonds with share acquisition rights
Dividends paid
Purchase of treasury shares

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (No.18)

1 6 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2021

(Millions of yen)

2020

(Millions of yen)

2021

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)(Note 2)

¥ 4,264 4,468 $ 38,519
1,686 1,347 15,237
540 3 4,879
83 302 752
- (2) -
(1,336) 243 (12,075)
(415) 415 (3,754)
1 1 12
(5) 24 (45)
- (2) -
(46) 5 (420)
(13) 55 (124)
3 6 34
(24,444) (25,085) (220,799)
1,350 2,115 12,195
(19) (2,636) (178)
(4) - (41)
(129) 246 (1,172)
34 165 309
(24,851) (14,298) (224,470)
309,125 54,505 2,792,207
(20,276) (3,010) (183,153)
244,077 (2,588) 2,204,655
(2,188) 91 (19,771)
357 9,481 3,231
(17,676) 19,697 (159,668)
(57,521) 35,943 (519,571)
— 4 —_—
1,857 (1,284) 16,774
6 (31) 56
24,692 25,513 223,037
(1,448) (2,218) (13,085)
2,629 (1,759) 23,751
440,329 101,719 3,977,320
(519) (1,685) (4,690)
387 - 3,503
440,197 100,034 3,976,134
(617,035) (561,905) (5,573,440)
464,300 418,332 4,193,847
22,777 50,135 205,744
(873) - (7,890)
(1,239) (1,696) (11,197)
3 12 30
- (99) -
(867) (1,439) (7,836)
(2) (35) (18)
(132,936) (96,695) (1,200,760)
- (11,099) -
(980) (1,062) (8,855)
(1) (1) (9)
(981) (12,162) (8,864)
(2) 0 (21)
306,277 (8,822) 2,766,487
¥ 75,649 84,472 $ 683,312
381,927 75,649 3,449,799




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2021

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Yamagata
Bank, Ltd. (the "Bank") have been prepared in accordance with the
provisions set forth in the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of
Japan and its related accounting regulations and the Enforcement
Regulation for the Banking Law of Japan (the "Banking Law") , and in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan
("Japanese GAAP"), which are different in certain respects as to
application and disclosure requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements include information
which is not required under accounting principles generally accepted
in Japan but is presented herein as additional information.

As permitted by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act amounts
of less than one million yen have been omitted. As a result, the totals
shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements (both in
yen and U.S. dollars) do not necessarily agree with the sums of the
individual amounts.

2. U.S. Dollar Amounts

The Bank maintains its records and prepares its financial statements in
yen. Amounts in U.S. dollars are presented solely for the convenience
of readers outside Japan. The rate of 110.71=U.S.$1.00, the rate of
exchange in effect on March 31, 2021, has been used in translation.
The translation should not be construed as a representation that yen
could be converted into U.S. dollars at the above or any other rate.

3. Summary of Significant Acco-
unting Policies

a. Principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Bank and its 7 subsidiaries, except for 3 subsidiaries
which are not consolidated due to their immateriality.

All significant intercompany receivables and payables and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of an acquisition
and the fair value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition. Immaterial goodwill is charged to income when
incurred.

b. Securities

Securities are classified into three categories: trading, held-to-maturity
bonds, or other securities (securities available for sale). Trading
account securities, which are purchased for trading purposes, are
carried at market value and held-to-maturity bonds are carried at
amortized cost. Marketable securities classified as securities available
for sale are carried at market value with changes in unrealized holding
gain or loss, net of the applicable income taxes, included directly in
net assets. Available-for-sale securities whose fair value is deemed to
be extremely difficult to determine are carried at cost. The cost of
securities sold is determined by the moving average method.

c. Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are stated at fair market value.

d. Property, plant and equipment

The Bank recognizes depreciation by the straight-line method applicable
to each specific category of assets. The useful lives of buildings and
equipment are summarized as follows:

Buildings : 2 to 50 years Equipment : 2 to 15 years

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of the consolidated
subsidiaries is mainly computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of respective assets.

e. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are depreciated by the straight-line method. The
Bank's software, which is used in-house, is depreciated based on the
estimated period of use (mainly five years) at the Bank and at consoli-
dated subsidiaries.

f. Leased assets

Leased assets on finance lease transactions that do not transfer
ownership are depreciated over the useful life of assets, equal to the
lease term, by the straight-line method with zero residual value or,
where lease agreements stipulate guarantee of residual value, the
guaranteed residual value. The Bank leases certain vehicles, computer
equipment and other assets.

g. Allowance for loan losses

The Bank's allowance for doubtful accounts is treated as follows in
accordance with the self-assessment standards and write-off/provision
standards that have been set in advance. For loans specified as
performing loans or sub-performing loans pursuant to the "Practical
Guidelines for Self-Assessment of Assets by Financial Institutions
such as Banks and for Auditing of the Write-off of Doubtful Accounts
and Allowances for Doubtful Accounts” (Japan Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Bank Audit Special Committee Report No. 4,
October 8, 2020), the estimated losses among performing loans over
the next year and the estimated losses for sub-performing loans over
the next three years is calculated and recorded based for the most part
on the loan loss ratio over the past 5 calculation periods. In addition,
the estimated losses may be calculated after making revisions, as
necessary, such as to future prospects, etc. For loans that may be
deemed to be in danger of bankruptcy, deduct from the amount of the
loan the estimated marketable value of collateral and the estimated
recoverable amount by way of guarantees, and for those borrowers for
whom the remaining balance exceeds a stipulated amount, the amount
shall be recorded which remains after subtracting the recoverable
portion reasonably estimated based on cash flow, and for other
borrowers, the estimated losses over the next three years shall be
calculated and recorded, based on the past loan loss ratio. For loans
that may be deemed to be in danger of bankruptcy or deemed a
defacto bankrupt loan, the balance is recorded after deducting from
the loan amount, the estimated disposal price of the collateral and the
recoverable amount from guarantees.

All loans are assessed by a front department based on asset self-as-
sessment standards, and the asset audit department, which is
independent of that department, audits the assessment results.

Regarding the allowance for doubtful accounts of consolidated subsid-
iaries, for general loans, the amount deemed necessary in
consideration of the past loan loss ratio is recorded, and for specific
loans for which there is a concern regarding possible sub-performance,
these are individually considered for their potential recoverability, and
the estimated non-recoverable amount for each is recorded respec-
tively.

h. Provision for bonuses for directors

Provision for bonuses for directors and corporate auditors is provided
in the amount accrued during the year, which is calculated based on
the estimated amount of future bonus payments to directors.

i. Provision for retirement benefits for directors

Provision for retirement benefits for directors is provided in the amount
accrued during the year, which is calculated based on the estimated
amount of future retirement payments to directors.

j. Provision for share payments of board incentive plan

Provision for share payments of board incentive plan is provided for the
expected stock payments due to points assigned to directors based on
the stock incentive plan, in order to prepare for the delivery of the
Bank’s stock through the board incentive BIP trust.

k. Provision for reimbursement of deposits

Provision for reimbursement of deposits which are derecognized as
liabilities is provided for the possible losses on the future claims of
repayments based on historical repayment experience.

I. Provision for contingent loss

Provision for contingent loss is provided for future estimated payments
to the Credit Guarantee Corporations.
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m. Provision for point service program

Provision for point service program relating to the points awarded by
the use of credit cards issued by consolidated subsidiaries is provided
in the amount deemed necessary based on the reasonable estimate of
expected future use of the points in order to prepare for the costs in
the event of future use.

n. Provision for loss on interest repayment

Provision for loss on interest repayment is provided for the possible
losses on the future claims of returning interests.

0. Employees’ retirement benefits

For the calculation of employees’ retirement benefit obligation, the
estimated amount of employees' retirement benefits is attributed to
each period by the straight-line method.

Prior service cost is amortized as incurred, by the straight-line method
over a period (5 years) which falls within the average remaining years
of service of the active participants in the plans.

Actuarial gain and loss are amortized in the year following the year in
which the gain or loss is recognized, by the straight-line method over a
period (5 years) which falls within the average remaining years of
service of the active participants in the plans.

Also, certain consolidated subsidiaries calculate the net defined
benefit liability and retirement benefit cost using the simplified method
which assumes the retirement benefit obligation to be equal to the
necessary payments of the voluntary retirement for all employees at
the fiscal year-end.

p. Foreign currency translation

Foreign-currency-denominated assets and liabilities are translated into
yen equivalents at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date.

g. Hedge accounting

1. Interest rate risk hedges
The Bank uses deferral hedges described in "Accounting and
auditing for the application of financial instrument accounting
standards in banking" (Operational Guidelines No. 24 of the
Industry-Specific Committee of the Japan Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, October 8, 2020. Hereinafter, the "Operational Guide-
lines No. 24 of the Industry-Specific Committee.") to hedge interest
rate risks generated by the Bank's financial assets and liabilities.
The effectiveness of hedges to offset market fluctuations is assessed
for each hedged item (for example, deposits and loans) and its
hedging instrument (such as interest rate swaps). Concerning hedges
to fix cash flows, the Bank identifies hedged items by grouping them
based on interest rate indexes and on interest rate revision periods in
accordance with Report No. 24 of the Industry Audit Committee, and
specifies interest rate swaps as hedging instruments. The Bank
specifies hedges in such a way that the major conditions of hedged
items and hedging instruments are almost the same, so we believe
that our hedges are highly effective.
2. Exchange rate fluctuation risk hedges

The method of accounting used for the hedging of foreign currency
fluctuation risk arising from the bank's foreign currency-denominated
financial assets and liabilities is to treat it as a deferred hedge as
specified in the "Accounting and audit handling of accounting for
foreign currency-denominated transactions in the banking industry”
(Operational Guidelines No. 25 of the Industry-Specific Committee of
the Japan Institute of Certified Public Accountants October 8, 2020.
Hereinafter, the "Operational Guidelines No. 25 of the Industry-Spe-
cific Committee.") We assess the effectiveness of the hedge by
regarding currency swaps and foreign exchange swaps, which are
conducted to reduce or eliminate exchange rate fluctuation risks
generated by monetary claims and liabilities in foreign currencies,
etc., as hedging instruments and by checking whether or not we
have appropriate foreign currency positions for the hedging
instruments to meet the hedged items (monetary claims and
liabilities in foreign currencies, etc.).

r. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and due from the Bank of Japan.

s. Consumption tax and regional consumption tax

With respect to the Bank and the domestic consolidated subsidiaries,
all amounts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet are
recorded exclusive of consumption tax and regional consumption tax.

t. Criteria for recognizing income and cost

1.Finance leases
The criteria used is to record sales and cost of sales at the time of
the receipt of lease payments.

2.Stock dividends

Criteria for recognizing stock dividends included in interest and
dividends on securities.

Regarding the recognition standard for stock dividends due to
disposal of other retained earnings (limited to cases where the
dividend asset is cash only), it is recorded in the consolidated fiscal
year in which the effective date of the resolution regarding the
dividend occurs, made by the distributing company's shareholders,
directors or other organ with decision-making authority.

u. Principles and procedures of accounting treatment
adopted when the provisions of the relevant
accounting standards, etc. are not clear.

Cancellation of investment trusts

Gains and losses associated with the cancellation / redemption of
investment trusts are aggregated for the entire investment trust, and in the
case of an overall profit including any distributions of profit made during
the period, it is recorded as a "interest and dividends on securities" of
"interest income, " and in case of an overall loss, it is recorded as "other
ordinary expense."

(Additional Information)

"Accounting Standards for Disclosure of Accounting Policies, Accounting
Changes and Correction of Errors" (ASBJ Statement No. 24, March 31,
2020) was applied to the consolidated financial statements at the end of
the current consolidated fiscal year, and "principles and procedures of
accounting treatment adopted when the provisions of relevant accounting
standards, etc. are not clear" have been disclosed.

v. Significant Accounting Estimates

The following sets forth the items for which an amount is recorded in the
consolidated financial statements for the current consolidated fiscal year
based on accounting estimates, and which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements for the next consolidated fiscal
year.

allowance for doubtful accounts
1.Amount recorded in the consolidated financial statements for the
current consolidated fiscal year.

current consolidated fiscal year
(March 31, 2021)
¥ 9,907 million
($ 89,493 thousand)

allowance for doubtful
accounts

Information to better understand the content of significant accounting
estimates that relate to certain identified items.
1) Calculation method
The calculation method for determining the allowance for doubtful
accounts is described in "Matters related to Accounting Policies" and
"(5) Standards for Recording the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts". It is
our assessment that the past loan loss ratio is sufficient for purposes of
estimating future losses, and so we calculated the estimated future
losses based on the relevant loan loss ratio and recorded the allowance
for doubtful accounts.
2) Key assumptions
a.The timing for the Covid19 situation to return to normal and its impact
Since it will take a considerable period of time for the Covid19
situation to return to normal, it is our assumption that it will have some
impact on the economic activities in our core business region.
b.The future outlook for individual debtor performance, etc. in
determining debtor classification
In determining debtor classification, the repayment ability of individual
debtors is evaluated and the future outlook for business performance,
etc., is assumed, taking into account the time needed for the
above-referenced Covid19 situation to return to normal and its impact.
If the debtor has prepared a management improvement plan, etc., the
future outlook for business performance, etc. is assumed based on an
assessment of the management improvement plan, etc.
3) Impact on consolidated financial statements during the next consoli-
dated fiscal year
If the assumptions used in the initial estimation change due to changes
in the business environment surrounding the debtor, such as the effect
of Covid19 or the success or failure of individual debtors' business
strategies, it may have a significant impact on the amount recorded for
allowance for doubtful accounts during the next consolidated fiscal
year.

w. Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

+ ASBJ Statement No. 29 Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition
(March 31, 2020)

+ ASBJ Guidance No. 30 Implementation Guidance on Accounting
Standard for Revenue Recognition (March 26, 2021)

1. Overview
The following are comprehensive standards relating to revenue recogni-
tion. Revenue is recognized by applying the following 5 steps:
Step 1: Identify each contract with clients.
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations of each contract.
Step 3: Calculate the transaction price.
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the contractual performance

obligations.



Step 5: Recognize revenue as performance obligations are completed.
2. Scheduled date of adoption
The Bank expects to adopt these revised standards from the
beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2022.
3. Impact of adopting revised standards
The impact of applying these accounting standards, etc. will be
minor.

- ASBJ Statement No. 30 Accounting Standard for Fair Value
Measurement (July 4, 2019)
- ASBJ Guidance No. 31 Implementation Guidance on Accounting
Standard for Fair Value Measurement (July 4, 2019)
ASBJ Statement No. 10 Accounting Standard for Financial
Instruments (July 4, 2019)
+ ASBJ Guidance No. 19 Implementation Guidance on Disclosures
about Fair Value of Financial Instruments (March 31, 2020)
. Overview
In order to improve comparability with international accounting
standards, “Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” and
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value
Measurement” (hereinafter the “Fair Value Measurement Accounting
Standards”) were developed, providing guidance on how to measure fair
value. “Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” will be
applied in determining the fair value of the following items.
*Financial instruments subject to “Accounting Standard for Financial
Instruments.”
Further, "Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value
of Financial Instruments" was revised, with explanatory notes
prescribed providing for a breakdown, etc. for each level of fair
value of the financial instruments.
2. Scheduled date of adoption
It is expected to take effect from the beginning of the March 2022
financial period.
3. Effect of adoption of the accounting standards The impact of
applying these accounting standards is currently being assessed.

x. Change in Presentation of Financial Statements

"Accounting Standard for Disclosure of Accounting Estimates" (ASBJ
Statement No. 31, March 31, 2020) is applied from the end of the
current consolidated fiscal year, and is stated in the notes in the
consolidated financial statements regarding significant accounting
estimates.

However, in the notes, in accordance with the transitional treatment
set forth in the proviso of paragraph 11 of the accounting standard,
the relevant information for the previous consolidated fiscal year is not
stated.

y. Additional information

The Bank has implemented a BIP (Board Incentive Plan) trust for
directors using the trust framework to grant Bank stock as director
compensation, with the aim of motivating directors to more strongly
commit to the medium - to long - term contribution to the Bank's
corporate value and improvement of the Bank’s business performance.
1. Summary of the transaction
Pursuant to the Stock Grant Rules of the Bank, points are allotted to
each director based upon level of achievement of business perfor-
mance goals each fiscal year and based upon individual position,
and the Bank stock and the money equivalent to the converted value
of the Bank stock based on the points are granted and delivered
through the trust at the time of leaving the Bank.
2. Matters regarding the Bank stock held by the trust
(1) The Bank's stock held by the trust is recorded as treasury stock
as part of shareholder's equity at the trust's book value.
(2) The trust's book value was ¥149 million ($1,354 thousand) and
¥181 million at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
(8) The number of Bank stocks held by the trust was 70 thousand
shares and 85 thousand shares at March 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

4. Stock or Contributed Capital of

Non-Consolidated Subsidiaries and
Affiliated Companies

Stock or contributed capital of non-consolidated subsidiaries and
affiliated companies totaled ¥1,155 million ($10,440 thousand) and ¥
1,197 million at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

—_

5. Government Bonds and Local
government bonds with Lending
Agreements

The “securities” include government bonds and local government bonds
lent through unsecured lending agreements. Their amount totaled ¥
33,075 million ($298,760 thousand) and ¥44,596 million at March
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

6. Loans and Bills Discounted

(i) Loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures and delinquent
loans totaled ¥1,716 million ($15,500 thousand) and ¥15,465
million ($139,690 thousand), respectively, at March 31, 2021, and ¥
2,549 million and ¥13,977 million, respectively, at March 31, 2020. A
loan is placed on non-accrual status when substantial doubt as to the
collectibility of its principal and interest is judged to exist, if payment is
past due for a certain period of time, or for other reasons.

Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy represent non-accrual loans, after the
charge-offs of loans deemed uncollectible, to borrowers who are legally
bankrupt as defined in Article 96, Paragraph 1, Subparagraphs 3 and 4
of Enforcement Ordinance of the Corporation Income Tax Law.
Delinquent loans are non-accrual loans other than loans to borrowers in
bankruptcy or loans on which interest payments have been deferred in
order to assist the restructuring of the borrowers.

(i) Loans past due for 3 months or more totaled ¥33 million ($301
thousand) and ¥61 million at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Loans past due for 3 months or more are those whose principal or
interest payments are 3 months or more past due but are not included
in loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures or delinquent loans.

(iii) Restructured loans totaled ¥6,969 million ($62,955 thousand)
and ¥7,465 million at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Restructured loans are those on which the Bank has granted certain
concessions, such as a reduction of the contractual interest rate or
principal amount or a deferral of interest/principal payments, in order to
assist the restructuring of the borrowers. Restructured loans are not
included in loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures, other
non-accrual loans, and loans past due for 3 months or more.

(iv) The total of loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures, other
non-accrual loans, loans past due for 3 months or more and restructured
loans amounted to ¥24,184 million ($218,448 thousand) and ¥24,054
million at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

(v) Bills discounted are accounted for as financial transactions
in accordance with "Operational Guidelines No.24 of the Industry-Spe-
cific Committee". The Bank has rights to sell or pledge accepted
banker's acceptance bills, commercial bills discounted, documentary
bills and foreign exchange bought without restrictions. The face value of
banker's acceptance bills, commercial bills, documentary bills acquired
at a discount and foreign exchange bought at a discount was ¥2,564
million ($23,163 thousand) and ¥3,776 million as of March 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

(vi) Overdraft protection on current accounts and contracts for loan
commitments are agreements under which the Bank and the consolidat-
ed subsidiaries are bound to extend loans up to a prearranged amount,
at the request of the customer, unless the customer is in breach of
contract. The unutilized balance of such contracts amounted to
¥562,374 million ($5,079,708 thousand) and ¥546,274 million as of
March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, of which the balance of
contracts that have a term of one year or less are unconditionally
cancelable at any time was ¥525,014 million ($4,742,249 thousand)
and ¥512,553 million as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Since many of these contracts are scheduled to expire without the
rights having been exercised, any unutilized balance in itself does not
necessarily affect the future cash flows of the Bank or its consolidated
subsidiaries. A provision is included in many of these contracts which
entitles the Bank and the consolidated subsidiaries to refuse the execution
of such loans, or to reduce the maximum amount loaned under such
contracts when there is a change in the borrower's financial situation, or
when it is necessary to secure a claim, or when other similar factors arise.
In addition, the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries obtain, if needed,
real estate or securities as collateral at the time when the contracts are
entered into and subsequently monitor the borrower's financial condition
periodically based on, and in accordance with, the procedures established. If
deemed necessary, specific measures such as amendments to the
contracts are undertaken in order to control the credit risk.
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7. Assets Pledged

Pledged assets and liabilities related to pledged assets as of March 31,
2021 and 2020 are summarized as follows:

2021 2020 2021

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Pledged assets:Securities ¥ 220,901 ¥ 220,732  $ 1,995,318
Loans and bills discounted ¥ 173334 ¥ —  $ 1,565,660
Liabilities related to the above pledged assets

Deposits ¥ 19,139 ¥ 15404 $ 172,877
Call money and bills sold ¥ - ¥ 19589 § 0
Payable under securities lending ransactions ¥ 8,318 ¥ 65505 $§ 75,136
Borrowed money ¥ 253,178 ¥ 7,882 $ 2,286,858

In addition, securitied totaling ¥6,424 million ($58,033 thousand) and
¥9,213 million were pledged as collateral for settlement of exchange and
futures transactions at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Initial margins of futures markets included in other assets as of March 31,
2021 and 2020 were zero and ¥57 million, respectively.

Cash collateral paid for financial instruments included in other assets as of
March 31, 2021 and 2020 were both ¥854 million ($7,713 thousand).
Deposits included in other assets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 were
¥209 million ($1,894 thousand) and ¥271 million, respectively.

Initial margins of central counterparty included in other assets as of March
31, 2021 and 2020 were both ¥25,000 million ($225,815 thousand).

8. Land Revaluation

Pursuant to the "Law Concerning the Land Revaluation" (the "Law"), land used for
the Bank's business operations was revalued on March 31, 2002. The excess of
the revalued aggregate market value over the total book value (carrying amount)
before revaluation was included in net assets at an amount net of the related tax
effect at March 31, 2002. The corresponding income taxes were included in
liabilities at March 31, 2002 as deferred tax liability on revalued land.

The Land revaluation was determined based on two methods, the official prices
published by the Commissioner of the National Tax Authority in accordance with
Article 2, Paragraph 4 of the "Enforcement Ordinance Concerning Land Revaluation,”
with certain necessary adjustments, and appraisal by a real estate appraiser.

The difference between the total fair value of land for business operation purposes,
which was revalued in accordance with Article 10 of the Law, and the total book
value of the land after the revaluation was ¥2,899 million ($26,187 thousand) and
¥3,508 million at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

9. Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated depreciation totaled ¥24,965 million ($225,502 thousand)
and ¥24,603 million at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

10. Recorded Reduction in Value
of Property, plant and equipment

The recorded reduction in value of property, plant and equipment was ¥ 1,931
million ($17,446 thousand) and ¥ 1,983 million at March 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. During the current consolidated fiscal year there were no new
property, plant and equipment for which the book value was reduced in value.

11. Guarantee Obligations in Respect
of the Corporate Bonds

Among the corporate bonds included in the “securities” , the guarantee
obligations in respect of the corporate bonds pursuant to private offering
securities (Article 2, paragraph 3 of the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act) were ¥ 18,257 million ($164,913 thousand) and ¥ 14,237
million at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

12. Other Income

Other income includes gain on sales of equity securieies etc. of ¥ 1,639
million ($14,804 thousand) and ¥ 1,375 million at March 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

13. General and Administrative Expenses

General and Administrative Expenses include salary and benefits of ¥9,271
million ($83,742 thousand) and ¥ 9,503 million, Periodic pension costs of
¥ 794 million ($7,171 thousand) and ¥ 294 million, and outsourcing costs
of ¥2,461 million ($22,231 thousand) and ¥2,119 million at March 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

14. Other Expenses

Other expenses include loss on sales of equity securities of ¥ 438 million
($3,964 thousand) and ¥ 762 million at March 31, 2021 and 2020, respec-
tively.

15. Impairment Loss

For the following branch businesses, etc., where the investment amount
cannot be expected to be recovered due to a decrease in cash flow due to a
decrease in operating income, a decline in land prices, and a decision to
consolidate branches etc., the book value is reduced to the recoverable
amount, and the reduction is recorded as an extraordinary loss in the form of
an impairment loss.

Current consolidated fiscal year (from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021)
(Millions of yen)

Classification | Main Use, etc. | Type Place Impairment loss
Working 20 branch land and | Yamagata Prefecture ¥ 536
assets businesses buildings (of which land 457)
Working 1 branch building | Miyagi Prefecture ¥ 3
assets business (of which land --)
Total ¥ 540

Current consolidated fiscal year (from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021)
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Classification | Main Use, etc. | Type Place Impairment loss
Working 20 branch land and | Yamagata Prefecture $ 4,845
assets businesses buildings (of which land 457)
Working 1 branch building | Miyagi Prefecture 3 33
assets business (of which land --)
Total $ 4,879

Preceding consolidated fiscal year (from April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020)
(Millions of yen)

Classification | Main Use, etc. | Type Place Impairment loss
Idle asset one idle et land Yamagata Prefecture ¥ 3
Total ¥ 3

As for the shop businesses, since their financial balance is continuously
monitored for each shop business on a shop-by-shop basis (however, for
business office groups that operate jointly, on a group unit basis), each
individual shop constitutes the smallest grouping unit, and for idle assets,
each asset constitutes the smallest grouping unit. Headquarters, office
centers, company housing, dormitories, etc. are categorized as shared
assets since they do not generate independent cash flow. The recoverable
amount of the asset group is measured based on its the net sale price. The
net sale price considers the importance of assets, and its calculation is
mainly based on "Real Estate Appraisal Standards" and "the price
calculated by the method established and announced by the Commissioner
of the National Tax Agency to calculate the price of land, which is the
basis for calculating the taxable value of land for the land value tax
stipulated in Article 16 of the Land Value Tax Act."

16. Other Comprehensive Income

Reclassification adjustments and tax effects allocated to other compre-
hensive income for the year ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 are

summarized as follows:
2021 2020 2021

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Valuation difference on available -for- sale securities:
Amount arising during the year ¥ 11,843 ¥ (10923) $ 106,977

Reclassification adjustments (169) (2,636) (1,533)
Amount before tax effect 11,673 (13,560) 105,444
Tax effect (3,471) 4,046 (31,352)
Valuation difference on available -for- sale securities: 8,202 (9,514) 74,091




Deferred gains or losses on hedges:

Amount arising during the year 2,233 (1,900) 20,178
Reclassification adjustments 1,259 1,086 11,374
Amount before tax effect 3,493 (814) 31,552
Tax effect (1,065) 248 (9,623)
Deferred gains or losses on hedges 2,427 (566) 21,929
Retirement benefits liability adjustments:
Amount arising during the year 1,537 (874) 13,885
Reclassification adjustments 719 214 6,499
Amount before tax effect 2,256 (660) 20,384
Tax effect (688) 201 (6,217)
Retirement benefits liability adjustments 1,568 (458) 14,167
Total other comprehensive income ¥ 12,198 ¥ (10,539) $ 110,188

17. Stocks Issued

The number of stocks issued and changes during the year ended March 31,
2021 and 2020 are summarized as follows:

Thousands of stocks Thousands of stocks

2021 2020

Treasury stock ~ Commonstockissued ~ Treasury stock  Common stock issued

Beginning of the year 1,404 34,000 1,407 34,000
Increase during the year 01 - 04 -
Decrease during the year 142 - 25 -
End of the year 1,390°3 34,000 1,404 "6 34,000

*1 The increase of less than thousand in treasury stock, which is common stock, was due to
the purchase of fractional numbers of less than one unit.

*2 The decrease of 14 thousand in treasury stock, which is common stock, was due to the
delivery of the Bank's stock from board incentive BIP trust.

*3 The number of treasury stock as of the end of consolidated fiscal year includes 70
thousand of the Bank's stock held by the board incentive BIP trust.

*4 The increase of less than thousand in treasury stock, which is common stock, was due to
the purchase of fractional numbers of less than one unit.

*5 The decrease of 2 thousand in treasury stock, which is common stock, was due to the
delivery of the Bank's stock from board incentive BIP trust.

*6 The number of treasury stock as of the end of consolidated fiscal year includes 85
thousand of the Bank's stock held by the board incentive BIP trust.

18. Dividends

Dividends for the year ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 are summarized as
follows:

2021
November 10, 2020 May 14, 2020

Resolution by the
board of directors

Resolution by the
board of directors

Total dividends ¥ 490milion $ 4427 thousand ¥ 490 millon ~ $ 4,427 thousand
Dividend per share ¥ 1500 § 0135 ¥ 1500 $ 0135
Record date September 30, 2020 September 30, 2020 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020
Effective date December 4, 2020  December 4, 2020 June 5, 2020 June 5, 2020
2020
November 8, 2019 May 13, 2019

Resolution by the
board of directors board of directors

Total dividends ¥ 490 million ¥ 571 million
Dividend per share ¥ 15.00 ¥ 17.50
Record date September 30, 2019 March 31, 2019
Effective date December 5, 2019 Jure 5, 2019

Resolution by the

Dividends for which the Record date belonged to the year ended March 31, 2021
and 2020 but to be effective in the following year are summarized as follows:

2021 _2020
May 13, 2021 May 14, 2020
Resolution by the boad of diretors Resolution by the board of directors
Total dividends ¥ 490 million $ 4,427 thousand ¥ 490 million
Dividend per share ¥ 1500 § 0.135 ¥ 15.00
Record date March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Effective date June 4, 2021 June 4, 2021 June 5, 2020

Total dividends above include 1 million yen for the stocks held by the board
incentive BIP trust.

Dividends are recorded in the fiscal year in which the proposed appropriation of
retained earnings is approved by the Board of Directors and by the general
meeting of shareholders. There is a limit on dividends under Article 18 of the
Banking Act. An amount equal to 20% of the aggregated amount of dividends
shall be set aside as a legal reserve or legal capital surplus, regardless of Article
445-4 of the Companies Act of Japan.

19. Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents stated in the consolidated statement of cash

flows consisted of the following:
2021 2020 2021

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Cash and due from banks ¥ 394,592 ¥ 86,123 $ 3,564,200
Current deposits (87) (139) (794)
Ordinary deposits (377) (264) (3,406)
Time deposits (12,000) (10,000) (108,394)
Deposits with Japan Post Bank (193) (63) (1,751)
Others (5) (6) (52)
Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 381,927 ¥ 75,649 $ 3,449,799
20. Leases

(As lessee)

Finance Lease transaction
Finance lease transactions that do not transfer ownership.

(D Description of lease asset

Property, plant and equipment
Primarily, a portion of vehicles and electronic computers.

(2 Method of depreciation of lease assets
As stated in the “f. Leased assets” of “3. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies”.

(As lessor)
Investments in leased assets at March 31, 2021 and 2020 are summarized as follows:

2021 2020 2021

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Gross lease receivables ¥ 14,727 ¥ 15,457 $ 133,023
Estimated residual values 1,219 1,125 11,013
Unearned interest income (1,981) (2,187) (17,898)
Investments in leased assets ¥ 13,964 ¥ 14,396 $ 126,139

Maturities of lease receivables at March 31, 2021 are as follows:
Years ending March 31 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

2022 ¥ 4,407 $ 39,813
2023 3,672 32,272
2024 2,721 24,583
2025 1,858 16,787
2026 1,135 10,256
2027 and thereafter 1,030 9,311

Maturities of lease receivables at March 31, 2020 are as follows:
Years ending March 31 (Millions of yen)

2021 4,504
2022 3,684
2023 2,841
2024 1,997
2025 1,156
2026 and thereafter 1,273
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actions are discussed by the ALM Council, based on the

21 " FI nanCIaI InStru ments outcome of the deliberations of the ALM Committee.

1. Matters relating to the state of financial instruments Risks are monitored using methodology such as basis point

22

The Bank provides financial services mainly connected with the
banking business including deposits, loans, buying and selling
trading securities and security investments. In the banking business,
which is the main business of the Bank, funds are raised by means
such as accepting deposits and borrowing money from the call
money market, and are invested by providing loans and buying
securities. Financial assets and liabilities are susceptible to interest
rate fluctuations, so the Bank bears market risk, which is the risk of
loss caused by changes in financial market conditions (for example,
interest rate risk and price fluctuation risk), and the risk of failing to
raise sufficient funds.

The Bank performs comprehensive asset and liability management
(ALM) to appropriately control the balance of profit and risk in a way
that suits fund raising and investment policy as well as taking into
consideration the state of assets and liabilities and the trends of the
financial and capital markets. The Bank uses derivatives as part of
such management.

(2) Nature and risk of financial instruments

The Bank's financial assets consist mainly of loans to domestic
companies and individuals, and the Bank is exposed to the credit
risks arising from customers defaulting on their loans. Securities
mainly consist of stocks, bonds and investment trusts, some of
which are held until the maturity date, others are held for purposes
such as investment and business promotion. Those securities are
exposed to credit risk of the relevant issuer, the risks of fluctuations
in interest rates and market prices.

Deposits, call money, etc., those are financial liabilities are exposed
to interest rate fluctuation risks caused by differences in interest
rates and the periods between financial liabilities and financial
assets. Financial liabilities are also exposed to the funding risk of
loss due to inability to raise funds, because of reasons such as
unexpected outflow of funds, and by raising funds at interest rates
much higher than the normal rate because of unavoidable reasons;
and the market liquidity risk of loss caused by the inability to raise
the required funds because of disruption such as a credit crunch in
the entire market and by trading at prices greatly disadvantageous
compared with the normal price.

(3) Risk management for financial instruments

i. Credit risk management
The Bank measures the risk amount through credit judgments,
credit ratings and self-assessments, attaching importance to the
public good, safety, growth potential and profitability, and controls
the risk on the principle of elimination of concentration on specific
customers, in accordance with credit policy (lending standards),
which states the basic ideas about lending, the code of conduct
and other matters, and with the credit risk management rules,
which specify credit risk management methods.
The Bank's credit review division and sales promotion division are
separated to ensure independence of each other and stringent
credit risk management.
The Bank conducts rigorous self-assessment, which includes
audits by the audit division, in order to secure the soundness of
the assets. Based on the results, the Bank appropriately writes off
bad debts and sets aside reserves.
The Bank has a credit rating system for business loans to
understand the true state of companies from both quantitative and
qualitative aspects.
To reduce and offset credit risk, the Bank receives collateral and
guarantees for lending transactions and offsets loans against
deposits. The Bank's basic approach to security is stated in the
credit policy, and security assessments, management policies and
procedures are set out in the operation manual.
Measurement method and procedures for credit risk amount are
stipulated in the operation manual and the risk is measured
monthly based on the borrower's credit rating and other factors.
The results are reported to the ALM Council (the board of
managing directors).
ii. Market risk management
a. Interest rate risk management
The Bank's interest rate fluctuation risk is managed by ALM.
Risk management methodology and procedures are stated in
detail in the rules and manuals related to ALM. Present
conditions are checked, state of execution is checked and future

(1) Policy for financial instruments value (BPV) and value at risk (VaR), and mainly with gap

analyses and interest rate sensitivity analyses, and the results
are reported monthly to the ALM Council. As part of ALM,
derivatives such as interest rate swap transactions are
conducted to hedge interest rate risks.

b. Price fluctuation risk management
Trading and management of investment instruments such as
securities are performed in accordance with the investment
policy and risk management policy as determined by the board of
directors on a semi-annual basis The middle section of the
Financial Markets Division and the Risk Management Division
measure market risk for securities investments quantitatively and
comprehensively using VaR, etc. The results are reported to the
relevant directors, the ALM Council, etc., with the frequency set
for each financial instrument to check the state of compliance
with the rule.

c. Quantitative information concerning market risk
The principal financial instruments that are subject to interest rate
risk and price fluctuation risk, which are the main risk variables
affecting the Bank, are loans and bills discounted, securities,
deposits and derivative transactions.
The variance-covariance method (holding period: 90 days*,
confidence interval: 99%, observation period: 250 business days)
was used for the calculation of VaR, the market risk volume. The
volume of overall market risk (estimated loss) as of March 31,
2021 (consolidated accounts settlement date) and 2020 was
¥44,492 million ($401,881 thousand) and ¥53,187 million,
respectively.
The Bank believes that the measurement model estimates market
risk with sufficient accuracy because the Bank examines the
model by means such as performing backtesting to compare the
VaR calculated using the model with the actual profit and loss.
However, VaR measures market risk volume with a certain
probability that is calculated statistically based on historical
market movements, and therefore VaR may fail to represent risk in
the case of exceptionally drastic change in market conditions.
* Holding period for shares purchased for business relationships,

which are included in the securities: 125 days.
iii. Liquidity risk management

Sections managing liquidity risks at the Bank are clearly stated in

the liquidity risk management rules that stipulate the liquidity risk

management procedures, system and so on. The Bank has a

management system to secure sufficient liquidity in case of

unexpected events by setting liquidity standards for various cases

including times of normality, times of concern, and times of

emergency.

(4) Supplementary explanation of fair values of financial instruments
Fair value of financial instruments includes market price as well as
reasonably determined value where market price is unavailable.The
reasonably determined value could differ depending on different
conditions and assumptions because calculation of such value is
conducted based on certain conditions and assumptions.

2. Fair value of financial instruments
Carrying amount and fair value, as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, and the
difference between the values are shown in the table below. Unlisted
stocks and others whose fair value is deemed to be extremely difficult to
determine are not listed in the table (see Note 2). Accounts considered to
be immaterial are omitted.



<March 31, 2021>

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference
(1) Cash and due from banks | ¥ 394,592 |¥394,592 |¥ -
(2) Securities
Held-to-maturity bonds 18,035 18,336 300
Other securities 863,311 863,311 -
(3) Loans and bills discounted | 1,739,782
Allowance for loan losses (*1) (9,189)
1,730,592 1,751,379 20,786
Total assets 3,006,532 |[3,027,619 | 21,087
(1) Deposits 2,579,349 |[2,579,380 31
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit 80,834 80,834 -
(3) Payables under securities 8,318 8,318 —
lending transactions
(4) Borrowed money 258,073 258,102 29
Total liabilities 2,926,575 2,926,636 60
Derivative transactions (*2)
To which hedge accounting is not applied 22 22 -
To which hedge accounting is applied (1,252) (1,252) —
Total derivatives ¥ (1,230) [¥ (1,230) |¥ —
<March 31, 2021> (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Carrying amount Fair value Difference
(1) Cash and due from banks | $3,564,200 |$3,564,200 | $ —
(2) Securities
Held-to-maturity bonds 162,908 165,625 2,716
Other securities 7,797,954 7,797,954 -
(8) Loans and bills discounted | 15,714,770
Allowance for loan losses (*1) (83,005)
15,631,764 | 15,819,519 | 187,755
Total assets 27,156,828 | 27,347,299 | 190,471
(1) Deposits 23,298,251 23,298,535 283
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit 730,147 730,147 -
(3) Payables under securities 75,136 75,136 -
lending transactions 2,331,076 2,331,342 266
(4) Borrowed money
Total liabilities 26,434,611 | 26,435,161 550
Derivative transactions (*2)
To which hedge accounting is not applied 200 200 -
To which hedge accounting is applied (11,313) (11,313) —
Total derivatives $ (11,113) [$ (11,113)| $ —

(*1) General reserve and specific allowance for loan losses corresponding to
loans and bills discounted are deducted.
(*2) Derivative transactions recorded in other assets and other liabilities are

presented on a net basis.

<March 31, 2020>

(Millions of yen)

reported as fair value because the fair value is approximately the same as
the carrying amount. Concerning due from banks with maturity, the
carrying amount is reported as fair value because the remaining periods
are as short as less than one year, and the fair value is approximately the
same as the carrying amount.

(2) Securities

Fair value of stocks is determined based on the exchange price, and that
of bonds based on the exchange price or price quoted by the counterparty
financial institutions. Fair value of investment trusts is determined based
on the price publicly available. Fair value of privately placed guaranteed
bonds is calculated by discounting the total amount of principal and
interest at an interest rate deemed to be applicable to similar bonds by
categories based on internal ratings and terms of the bonds.

(3) Loans and bills discounted

Fair value of loans and bills discounted is calculated by categorizing the
loans based on the type, internal rating, term (the remaining period or the
period between interest rate renewals), and then discounting the total of the
principals and interest with a rate expected for a new similar loan. For loans
with short remaining periods (less than one year), the carrying amount is
reported as the fair value because the fair value is approximately the same as
the carrying amount.

For receivables from “legally bankrupt”, “virtually bankrupt” and “possibly
bankrupt” borrowers, possible loan losses are estimated based on factors
such as present value of expected future cash flow and expected amounts to
be collected from collateral and guarantees. Since the fair value of these
items approximates the carrying amount net of the currently expected loan
losses at the end of the year, such carrying amount is presented as fair value.
Concerning loans whose maturity dates were not set because they were
limited to within the values of the collateral offered as security, the
carrying amount is reported as fair value because the fair value is expect-
ed to be approximately the same as the carrying amount considering
expected periods of repayments and the terms of interest rate.

Liabilities
(1) Deposits, and (2) negotiable certificates of deposit

Concerning demand deposits, the amounts to be paid if such deposits
were withdrawn at the end of the year (book values) are regarded as fair
value. Time deposits are separated by period, and the present value is
calculated by discounting the future cash flow. The discount rate is the
rate used for new deposit-taking. For those with short remaining periods
(less than one year), their carrying amount is reported as the fair value
because the fair value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.

(3) Payables under securities lending transactions

The carrying amount is reported as fair value for payables under securities
lending transactions because they have short maturity (less than one
year), and the fair value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.

(4) Borrowed money

Fair value of borrowed money is calculated by discounting the total
amount of the principal and interest of such borrowed money classified by
the type, and the remaining period at the interest rates considered to be
applicable to new similar borrowed money. The fair value of short-term
borrowed money with remaining period as of the end of the fiscal year not
exceeding one year is based on the carrying amount because the fair
value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.

Derivative transactions
Matters related to derivative transactions are as stated in Note 24 "Fair Value

Note 1 Method to calculate fair values of financial instruments

Assets
(1) Cash and due from banks

Concerning due from banks without maturity, the carrying amount is

Carrying amount |  Fair value | Difference Information on Derivatives".

(1) Cash and due from banks | ¥ 86,123 |¥ 86,123 |¥ - ) o ) )

(2) Securities Note 2 F.|r.1an0|al |nstruments whose fair value is deemed tc.) be extrgmely
e T s
Other securities 727,057 727,057 - ’ :

(3) Loans and bills discounted | 1,713,248 Carrying amount
Allowance for loan losses (*1) (9,164) Category 2021 2020 2021

1,704,083 1,725,536 21,452 (Millions of yen) (Millions of yen)  |(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Total assets 2,531,502 2,553,211 21,709 Unlisted stocks (*1)(*2) | ¥ 1,776 | ¥ 1,802 | $ 16,043

(1) Deposits 2,267,133 [2,267,177 43 Investment in partnerships (*3) and others 18,389 14,985 166,107

(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit | 101,111 101,111 - Total ¥ 20,165 | ¥ 16,788 | $ 182,150

(2) Sa” rtljﬁloney ?;d bills S.?.Id égggg ;gggg : (*1) Unlisted stocks are not subject to fair value disclosure because of the

4 ayell €s unaer gecurl 1es ’ ! extreme difficulty in determining their fair values as they are not sold in
lending transactions the market.

) BOFVOV,V?F’ money 13,505 13,544 38 (*2) Impairment accounting was applied to unlisted stocks of ¥ O million in the

Total liabilities 2,466,844 |2,466,927 62 previous consolidated fiscal year.

Derivative transactions ("2) Impairment accounting was applied to unlisted stocks of ¥ 0 million ($

To which hedge accounting is not applied (723) (723) - 0) in this consolidated fiscal year.
To Wh'Ch_hEdg_e accounting is applied (4,758) (4,758) - (*3) In the case that partnership assets consist of unlisted stocks whose fair

Total derivatives ¥ (5482) |¥ (5482) |¥ - value is deemed to be extremely difficult to determine, investment in

partnerships is not subject to fair value disclosure.
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Note 3 Scheduled redemption amounts of financial assets and securities with maturities

<March 31, 2021>

(Millions of yen)

1 ygal:eoinless 1 Eel;er ?g:g[Jgh 3 ygzl;res ?r]:ll['?)ijgh 5 ylz:?satggugh 7 yggreé ?rztrce)rugh ?geyzfat;asr
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

Cash and due from banks ¥ 394,592 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —
Securities 24,618 105,816 110,072 73,835 273,910 190,399
Held-to-maturity bonds 1,396 4,938 6,782 4918 — —
Corporate bonds 1,396 4,938 6,782 4,918 — —
Other securities with a maturity date 23,222 100,878 103,290 68,916 273,910 190,399
Government bonds 9,074 42,225 7,165 - 25,730 75,485
Local government bonds 138 296 20,410 18,412 120,810 23,753
Corporate bonds 10,534 24,770 17,936 26,711 18,425 20,164
Other 3,474 33,586 57,776 23,792 108,944 70,995
Loans and bills discounted(*) 383,779 312,753 241,100 174,786 176,114 430,669
Total ¥ 802,991 | ¥ 418,570 | ¥ 351,173 | ¥ 248,621 | ¥ 450,025 | ¥ 621,068

* Of loans and bills discounted, the portion whose timing of collection is unforeseeable, such as loans to “Legally bankrupt” borrowers, loans to “Virtually bankrupt”
borrowers, and loans to “Possibly bankrupt” borrowers, amounting to ¥ 20,577 million ($ 185,865 thousand) is not included in the above table.

<March 31, 2021 >

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

1y e s 1 y[;';? t?\frtcirlgh 3 ys‘:ri ?r?ri[;gh 5 y5§§ ?rfwtrihgh 7 ygauri ?rfutr?)[:gh ?geyzgfs’
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Cash and due from banks $ 3,564,200 | $ -3 —-1$ -1 $ —13 -
Securities 222,372 955,801 994,245 666,924 2,474,124 1,719,800
Held-to-maturity bonds 12,610 44,606 61,265 44,425 - -
Corporate bonds 12,610 44,606 61,265 44,425 — —
Other securities with a maturity date 209,761 911,195 932,980 622,498 2,474,124 1,719,800
Government bonds 81,970 381,403 64,726 - 232,413 681,826
Local government bonds 1,255 2,682 184,363 166,315 1,091,229 214,558
Corporate bonds 95,154 223,737 162,017 241,273 166,432 182,142
Other 31,381 303,371 521,873 214,908 984,048 641,273
Loans and bills discounted(*) 3,466,533 2,824,983 2,177,769 1,578,774 1,590,775 3,890,067
Total $ 7,253,106 | $ 3,780,785 $ 3,172,015 $ 2,245,698 | $ 4,064,900 | $ 5,609,868
<March 31, 2020> (Millions of yen)
1 ygal:eoll] ess 1 Eel;er ?r::g[lgh 3 yszl;rz ?r?riijgh 5 yzgresat];lt?orugh 7 ygaures ?;tzhgh ?geyzfatg
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Cash and due from banks ¥ 86,123 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —
Securities 44,209 97,379 165,070 47,672 144,867 141,106
Held-to-maturity bonds 1,219 3,890 5,428 3,699 - —
Corporate bonds 1,219 3,890 5,428 3,699 — —
Other securities with a maturity date 42,990 93,489 159,641 43,973 144,867 141,106
Government bonds 24,989 35,174 29,836 - 6,821 62,158
Local government bonds - 20,486 59,899 4,261 87,548 31,775
Corporate bonds 15,024 27,006 24,545 23,386 7,151 14,765
Other 2,976 10,821 45,360 16,326 43,346 32,407
Loans and bills discounted(*) 410,950 306,532 237,854 153,781 153,274 433,587
Total ¥ 541,284 | ¥ 403,911 | ¥ 402,924 | ¥ 201,454 | ¥ 298,141 | ¥ 574,694
Note 4 Scheduled repayment amounts of bonds, borrowed money and other interest bearing liabilities
<March 31, 2021> (Millions of yen)
! yg)al}leoness 1 ;E;L;er ?rgg[;gh 3 yg:res ?r?ri[;gh 5 yggfsatﬁrec;ugh 7 yga“ri ?rf]trg[;gh ?geyggfsr
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Deposits(*) ¥ 2,451,673 | ¥ 119,411 | ¥ 8,264 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ -
Negotiable certificates of deposit 80,834 - - - - -
Payable under securities lending transactons 8,318 - - - - -
Borrowed money 254,811 2,654 499 100 7 -
Total ¥ 2,795,638 | ¥ 122,066 | ¥ 8,764 | ¥ 100 | ¥ 7| ¥ -

*Demand deposits are included in “Due in 1 year or less”.




<March 31, 2021>

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Due in Due after Due after Due after Due after Due after
1 year or less 1 year through 3 years through 5 years through 7 years through 10 years
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Deposits(*) $ 22,145,004 | $ 1,078,595 | $ 74,651 | $ -3 - -
Negotiable certificates of deposit 730,147 - - — - -
Payable under securities lending transactons 75,136 — — — — —
Borrowed money 2,301,616 23,979 4,510 905 63 —
Total $ 25,251,904 | $ 1,102,575 $ 79,162 $ 905| $ 63 -
<March 31, 2020> (Millions of yen)
Ty Due i e 1 ;%:? ?rf:ngh 3 yg:rz ?rfgjgh 5 ygifs?fwtféugh 7 ygaures ?rztrﬁhgh ?geyggg
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Deposits(*) ¥ 2,122,564 | ¥ 133,271 | ¥ 11,296 | ¥ —| ¥ = —
Negotiable certificates of deposit 101,111 - - - - -
Call money and bills sold 19,589 — — - - —
Payable under securities lending transactons 65,505 - - - - -
Borrowed money 9,650 2,791 1,028 24 10 -
Total ¥ 2,318,421 | ¥ 136,063 | ¥ 12,325 | ¥ 24 | ¥ 10 —

*Demand deposits are included in “Due in 1 year or less”.

22. Securities

Trading account securities, marketable securities classified as held-to-maturity bonds and other securities at March 31, 2021 and 2020 are summarized as

follows:

1. Trading account securities

There are no applicable matters.

2. Held-to-maturity bonds (As of March 31, 2021)

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Type

Carrying value

Fair value

Difference

Carrying Value

Fair value

Difference

Fair value exceeding
carrying value

Government bonds

¥ — |¥

— $ —

$ —

$ —

Local government bonds

Short-term corporate bonds

Corporate bonds

17,382

17,688

157,010

169,777

2,767

Other

Subtotal

17,382

17,688

157,010

159,777

2,767

Fair value not
exceeding carrying
value

Government bonds

Local government bonds

Short-term corporate bonds

Corporate bonds

653

647

(5) 5,898

5,847

(50)

Other

Subtotal

653

647

(5) 5,898

5,847

(50)

Total

18,035

¥ 18,336 | ¥

300 |$

162,908

$ 165,625

$ 2716

Held-to-maturity bonds (As of

March 31, 2020)

(Millions of yen)

Type

Carrying value

Fair value

Difference

Fair value exceeding
carrying value

Government bonds

¥

Local government bonds

Short-term corporate bonds

Corporate bonds

272

Other

13,692

Subtotal

13,692

272

Fair value not
exceeding carrying
value

Government bonds

Local government bonds

Short-term corporate bonds

Corporate bonds

544

(16)

Other

Subtotal

544

527

(16)

Total

14,237

¥ 14,493

256

25
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3. Other securities (As of March 31, 2021) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Type Carrying value Fair value Difference Carrying value Fair value Difference
Carrying value Stocks ¥ 30,690 ¥ 15,460 |¥ 15230 |$ 277,217 $ 139,649 |$137,567
exceeding cost Bonds 337,896 333,471 4,424 3,052,085 3,012,116 39,968
Government bonds 81,215 79,287 1,928 733,591 716,173 17,418
Local government bonds 183,823 181,702 2,120 1,660,404 1,641,249 19,155
Short-term corporate bonds — — — — — —
Corporate bonds 72,857 72,481 375 658,088 654,693 3,395
Other 184,165 174,035 10,130 1,663,498 1,571,995 91,503
Foreign bonds 58,571 55,799 2,772 529,057 504,018 25,039
Other 125,593 118,235 7,358 1,134,441 1,067,976 66,464
Subtotal 552,752 522,967 29,785 4,992,800 4,723,761 269,039
Carrying value not Stocks 3,745 4,421 (675) 33,833 39,935 (6,101)
exceeding cost Bonds 124,152 127,050 (2,898) 1,121,417 1,147,600 | (26,183)
Government bonds 78,465 81,180 (2,715) 708,748 733,274 (24,525)
Local government bonds — — — — — —
Short-term corporate bonds — — — — — —
Corporate bonds 45,686 45,870 (183) 412,668 414,326 (1,657)
Other 190,563 195,158 (4,595) 1,721,286 1,762,793 (41,507)
Foreign bonds 47,284 48,416 (1,131) 427,106 437,324 | (10,218)
Other 143,278 146,742 (3,464) 1,294,179 1,325,469 (31,289)
Subtotal 318,461 326,631 (8,169) 2,876,537 2,950,329 (73,792)
Total ¥ 871,214 ¥849,598 | ¥ 21,615 |$ 7,869,338 $7,674,090 | $ 195,247
Other securities (As of March 31, 2020) (Millions of yen)
Type Carrying value Fair value Difference
Carrying value Stocks ¥ 22,949 ¥ 9,889 |¥ 13,060
exceeding cost Bonds 361,064 355,259 5,805
Government bonds 113,144 110,042 3,102
Local government bonds 193,711 191,444 2,267
Short-term corporate bonds — — —
Corporate bonds 54,208 53,771 436
Other 56,911 52,939 3,972
Foreign bonds 32,943 29,880 3,063
Other 23,967 23,059 908
Subtotal 440,926 418,088 22,837
Carrying value not Stocks 6,883 8,602 (1,718)
exceeding cost Bonds 113,764 115,207 (1,442)
Government bonds 45,835 47,005 (1,170)
Local government bonds 10,258 10,276 (18)
Short-term corporate bonds — - -
Corporate bonds 57,670 57,924 (254)
Other 175,266 184,956 (9,689)
Foreign bonds 37,917 39,461 (1,544)
Other 137,349 145,494 (8,144)
Subtotal 295,914 308,765 (12,850)
Total ¥ 736,840 ¥726,854 | ¥ 9,986

4. Held-to-maturity bonds sold during the year
There are no applicable matters.

5. Other securities sold during the year ended March 31, 2021

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Proceeds from Sales Gains on sales Losses on sales Proceeds from sales Gains on sales Losses on sales

Stocks ¥ 9,860 ¥ 1,377 ¥ 350 $ 89,067 $ 12,446 $ 3,166
Bonds 402,218 706 998 3,633,084 6,381 9,015
Government bonds 296,089 494 991 2,674,463 4,466 8,957
Local government bonds 93,144 187 - 841,335 1,694 —
Short-term corporate bonds = - - - - -
Corporate bonds 12,984 24 6 117,285 220 57
Other 52,221 1,116 1,300 471,695 10,082 11,743
Total ¥ 464,300 ¥ 3,200 ¥ 2,648 $ 4,193,847 $ 28910 $ 23,926




Other securities sold during the year ended March 31, 2020

(Millions of yen)

Proceeds from Sales Gains on sales Losses on sales

Stocks ¥ 6,667 ¥ 1,227 ¥ 685
Bonds 340,244 2,301 1,040
Government bonds 333,029 2,288 1,026
Local government bonds — - -
Short-term corporate bonds — - -
Corporate bonds 7,215 13 13
Other 71,420 2,250 882
Total ¥ 418,332 ¥ 5780 ¥ 2,608

6. Securities for which the purpose of holding it has changed.

During the current consolidated fiscal year, the holding purpose for 228 million yen of bonds held for maturity was changed due to the significant deterioration of the credit status of the
bond issuer, and the securities were categorized as other securities. The impact of this change on the consolidated financial statements for the current consolidated fiscal year is

immaterial.

7. Securities which have readily determinable fair value are written down to fair value, and the difference between cost and fair value is treated as loss for the fiscal year if fair value has
significantly deteriorated compared with cost and fair value is unlikely to recover up to the acquisition cost.

The amount of the impairment loss for the year ended March 31, 2021 was 346 million yen (stocks 196 million yen and corporate bonds 150 million yen)
The amount of the impairment loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 was zero.

The criteria for determining whether a security's fair value has "significantly deteriorated” is: whether a security whose fair value is 50% or less and whether a security whose fair value
exceeds 50% but is 70% or less of the acquisition cost, considering the changes in the quoted market price during a certain period in the past, business performance and other factors.

23. Money Held in Trust

Other moneys held in trust (other than if held for operational purposes or held to maturity) during the year ended March 31, 2021

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S dollars)

: . : Carrying value Carrying value : N . Carrying value Carrying value
Carrying value | Fair value | Difference exceeding cost | not exceeding cost Carryin value | Fair value | Difference exceeding cost | not exceeding cost
Other moneys _ _ _ _ _ _
held intust | ¥ 1,261 |¥ 1,261 $ $11,398
Note Among these “Carrying value exceeding cost” and “carrying value not exceeding cost” are each a breakdown of “the difference.”

For the preceding consolidated accounting year (as of March 31, 2020)

(Millions of yen)

Carrying value

Fair value | Difference

Carrying value
exceeding cost

Carrying value
not exceeding cost

Other moneys

¥ 481

¥ 481 -

held in trust

24. Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities

The components of valuation difference on available-for-sale securities recorded on the consolidated financial statements at March 31, 2021 and 2020 are as

follows:
2021 2020 2021
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Valuation Gains (losses) ¥ 21,649 ¥ 9,976 $ 195,554
Other Securities 21,649 9,976 195,554
Other money held in trust — — —
(£) Deferred tax liabilities 6,581 3,110 59,446
Valuation dlﬁerence on avallable-for-sahle securities (before adjustment 15,068 6.865 136,107
based on equivalent amount of shareholdings)
(&) Amount equivalent to non-controlling interests equity - - —
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities owned by companies
accounted for using the equity method, the amount equivalent to owners of — — —
parent
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities ¥ 15,068 ¥ 6,865 $ 136,107

25. Fair Value Information on Derivatives

(1) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied are set forth in the table below. Contract amounts themselves do not reflect the market risks

of the derivative transactions.

Interest rate-related transactions

<March 31, 2021>
There are no applicable matters.
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<March 31, 2020>

(Millions of yen)

Contract amount ; Unrealized
Contract ; Fair :
Type maturing beyond ain or
yp amounts onegyea¥ value g(loss)
Over-the-count | Interest rate swaps
er transactions Receive-fixed/pay-floating ¥ 6,000 ¥ 6,000 ¥ 81 ¥ 81
Receive-floating/pay-fixed 14,000 14,000 (826) (826)
Total - - ¥ (745) ¥ (745)
Currency-related transactions
<March 31, 2021> (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Contract amount ; Unrealized Contract amount ; Unrealized
Contract : Fair : Contract : Fair :
Type maturing beyond ain or maturing beyond ain or
yp amounts onegyea¥ value g(loss) amounts onegyea¥ value g(loss)
Over-the-Count | Forward exchange contracts
er transactions | Sold ¥ 6,748 ¥ - ¥ (28) | ¥ (28) $ 60,953 $ - $ (253) | $ (2593)
Bought 7,838 - 68 68 70,800 - 615 615
Currency options
Sold ¥ 12,570 ¥ - ¥ (330 ¥ (241) $113,539 $ - $ (2983) | $ (2,185)
Bought 12,570 - 330 267 113,539 - 2,983 2,419
Total — — ¥ 40 ¥ 66 — — $ 362 $ 596
<March 31, 2020> (Millions of yen)
. i 1. The above transactions are measured at fair value
Type Contract ,%Z?jr”ar% %Efgnné Fair U%r:iﬁ“ére d and the resulting gains or losses are included in
amounts one year value (loss) the consolidated statement of income.
2. Fair values are obtained using the discounted
Over-the-Count | Forward exchange contracts cash flow, etc.
er transactions | Sold ¥ 17,906 ¥ - ¥ 107 ¥ 107
Bought 9,514 - (65) (65)
Currency options
Sold ¥ 3,550 ¥ - ¥ (44) ¥ (26)
Bought 3,550 - 44 32
Total — — ¥ 41 ¥ 46
Credit derivatives transactions
<March 31, 2021> (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Contract amount ; Unrealized Contract amount ; Unrealized
Contract : Fair : Contract : Fair :
Type maturing beyond ain or maturing beyond ain or
yp amounts onegyea¥ value g(loss) amounts onegyea¥ value g(loss)
Over-the-count | Credit default swaps
er transactions | Sold ¥ - ¥ — ¥ - ¥ - $ - $ — $ — $ -
Bought 2,227 2,227 (1 (17) 20,115 20,115 (162) (162)
Total — = ¥ (17) ¥ (17) — — $ (162) | § (162)
<March 31, 2020> (Millions of yen)
. f 1. The above transactions are measured at fair value
Type Contract %g%:—?% ?)?)%er F?'f Ugraeiﬁ"é? d and the resulting gains or losses are included in the
amounts one year value (loss) consolidated statement of income. _
Over-the-count | Credit default swaps fésﬁafié v\xa(l;tjce.s are obtained using the discounted
er transactions Sold ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - 3. "Sold" and "Bought" indicate assumption and
Bought 1,752 1,752 (19) (19) cession of credit risk, respectively.
Total - — ¥ (19) ¥ (19)

(2) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied
Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied are set forth in the table below. Contract amounts themselves below do not represent the market

risks of the derivati

ve transactions.

Interest rate-related transactions
<March 31, 2021>

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

:ee?r?sdaccoummg Type Major hedged item | Contract amounts Contgyt;gngﬂ;tggt{uving Fair value Contract amounts Cont{)aeito%n%ﬂ;tgztruring Fair value
Normal method Interest rate swaps | Loans, deposits
receive-floating/ y 61,399 v 61,399 ¥(1,195) $ 554,599 $ 554,599 $ (10,800)
pay-fixed
Exceptional Interest rate swaps
method receive-floating/ _ _ _ _
pay-fixed
Total - - - ¥(1,195) — - $ (10,800)

1. Deferred hedging is used, primarily based on Operational Guidelines No. 24 of the Industry-Specific Committee.
2. Calculation of market value
For transactions made through the exchange, the final price on the Tokyo Financial Exchange, etc. is used. Over-the-counter transactions are calculated
using the discounted present value and option price calculation models.
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<March 31, 2020>

(Millions of yen)

Currency-relate transactions
<March 31, 2021>

(Millions of yen)

i , 1. The above transactions apply deferral hedge
r'j]g?ﬁg daccountlng Type Major hedged item | Contract amounts Cont{)aecytozra]?%lrj]r;tggt(urlng Fair value accounting stipulated ion')'XCcounting aﬁd
Normal method [ Interest rate swaps | Loans, deposits auditing for the application of financial

receive-floating/ instrument aCCOL_Jntlng standardg'ln bankm_g
pay-fixed ¥ 66,139 ¥ 65,144 ¥(4,701) (Japanese Institute of Certified Public
. Accountants, Industry Audit Committee
Exceptional Interest. rate swaps Report No. 24 February 13, 2002).
method receive-floating/ _ — 2. The fair value of over-the-counter transac-
pay-fixed tions is calculated based on the discounted
Total - - — ¥ (4,701) present value and option pricing models.

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

r':]g(tjhgg daccountlng Type Major hedged item Contract amounts Com{fg;{g%ﬁg ymeztruring Fair value Contract amounts Cont[}ag}ﬂg(())l;r;t gz:uring Fair value
Foreign securities in

Normal method Currency swaps fo?eeiggn Csj?gnéfs ¥ 28,395 ¥ 23,206 ¥ (56) |$ 256,481 $ 209,611 $ (512)

Total — — - ¥ (56) - - $ (512)

1. Deferred hedging is used, primarily based on Operational Guidelines No. 25 of the Industry-Specific Committee.
2. Calculation of market value
Calculated using the discounted present value, etc.

<March 31, 2020>

(Millions of yen)

Hedge accounting
method

Type

Major hedged item

Contract amounts

Contract amount maturing

beyond one year Fair value

Normal method

Currency swaps

Foreign securities in
foreign currency

¥ 28,395

¥ 28,395 ¥

Total

26. Retirement Benefit Plans

The Bank and the consolidated subsidiaries have defined-benefit corporation
pension funds and lump-sum retirement benefits. Certain consolidated
subsidiaries use a simplified method for calculating retirement benefit
expenses and liabilities. The following table sets forth the funded and
accrued status of the plans and the amounts recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet for the Bank's and the consolidated subsidiaries' defined
retirement benefit plans:

(1) The changes in the retirement benefit obligation during the year ended
March 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020 2021

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Retirement benefit obligation at - ¥ 16,817 ¥ 17,148 $ 151,905

the beginning of the year
Service cost. 519 535 4,693
Interest cost......... . 50 51 454
Actuarial gain/loss......... (333) (96) (3,013)
Retirement benefits paid... (996) (821) (8,998)
Prior service cost — — —
Other «eueeeneeieiiiiieiinn — _ —

Retirement benefit obligation...

at the end of the year ¥ 16,057 ¥ 16,817 $ 145,041

(2) The changes in plan assets during the year ended March 31, 2021 and

2020 are as follows:

2021 2020 2021

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Plan assets at the beginning of the year... ¥ 16,349 ¥ 17,338 $ 147,675
Expected return on plan assets ... 441 450 3,987
Actuarial gain/loss......... 1,203 (970) 10,871
Contributions by employers ... 283 293 2,556
Contributions by employees ... 54 56 487
Retirement benefits paid ... (989) (818) (8,937)
Other ..covvviiiiiiiiiiii - — —

Plan assets at the end of the year... ¥ 17,341 ¥ 16,349 $ 156,640

1. The above transactions apply deferral hedge

accounting stipulated in "Accounting and

auditing for transactions in foreign currencies,

etc.,

in  banking"

(Japanese

Institute of

Certified Public Accountants, Industry Audit
Committee Report No. 25 July 29, 2002).

discounted present value.

. The fair value is calculated based on the

(3) The following table sets forth the funded status of the plans and the
amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31,
2021 and 2020 for the bank’s and the consolidated subsidiaries’ defined

benefit plans:

Funded retirement benefit obligation - - -
Plan assets at fair value ---

Unfunded retirement benefit obligation - - -

Net liabilities for retirement benefits

in the consolidated balance sheet ™™

Liabilities for retirement benefits - - -
Assets for retirement benefits- - -

Net liabilities for retirement benefits . ..

in consolidated balance sheet

2021 2020 2021

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

¥ 16,004 ¥ 16,762 $ 144,565
(17,341) (16,349) (156,640)
(1,336) 413 (12,075)

52 54 476
(1,284) 468 (11,599)

52 468 476
(1,336) - (12,075)

¥ (1,284) ¥ 468 $  (11,599)

(4) The components of retirement benefit expense for the year ended March
31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

2021 2020 2021

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets ---
Amortization of actuarial gain/loss cost - - -
Amortization of prior service cost ---
Other
Retirement benefit expense ---

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

¥ 465 ¥ 479 $ 4,205
50 51 454
(441) (450) (3,987)
719 214 6,499
¥ 79% ¥ 294 $ 7,171
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Notes Notes

1. Concerning the consolidated subsidiaries that use a simplified method, Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 were
all of the retirement benefit cost is included in the service cost. included in the following accounts in the consolidated balance sheets.

2. Service cost does not include the amounts contributed by employees
with respect to corporate pension fund plans.

2021 2020 2021

(5) The components of retirement benefits liability adjustments included in (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
other comprehensive income (before tax effect) for the years ended Deferred tax assets ¥ 389 ¥ 1965 $ 3,521
March 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: Deferred tax liabilities (3.248) (13) (29.338)

2021 2020 2021 For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, the reconciliation of
(Millions of yen) (Thausands of US. dollars) the statutory tax rate of the Bank to the effective income tax rate was as
follows:
Prior service cost............... ¥ - ¥ - $ -
Actuarial gain and loss 2,256 (660) 20,384
Other .. ) - - - 2021 2020
Total v ¥ _2256 ¥ (660) § 20384 Statutory tax rate 30.50% 30.50%
Valuation allowance 4.21% 11.59%
Non-deductible expenses 0.51% 0.69%

(6) Unrecognized prior service cost and unrecognized actuarial loss Non-taxable income (1.25%) (1.30%)
included in accumulated other comprehensive income (before tax Per capita inhabitants' tax rate 0.82% 0.78%
effect) as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: Reversal of revaluation reserve for land (2.67%) (0.15%)

Others 0.88% 1.02%
202 1 202 0 202 1 Effective tax rate 33.00% 43.13%
ill Thousands of U.S. doll
(Milions of yen) (Thousands o olers) (Change in Presentation of Financial Statements)

: - ' _ _ _ Since the "Reversal of revaluation reserve for land" included in "Others" in
Unrecogmzed prior s,erv'c,e cost ... ¥ ¥ $ the previous consolidated fiscal year has become more important, it has been
Unrecognized actuarial gain/loss ... 325 (1,931) 2,935 separately presented from the current consolidated fiscal year. In order to
Other ..o, - - - reflect this change in presentation, the notes for the previous consolidated
Total oo ¥ 325 ¥ (1,931) $ 2,935 fiscal year have been reclassified.

As a result, 0.87% displayed in "Others" in the previous consolidated fiscal
year has been reclassified as "Reversal of revaluation reserve for land" Minus

) ) 0.15% and "Others" 1.02%.
(7) The fair value of plan assets, by major category, as a percentage of

total plan assets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

2021 2020 28. Asset Retirement Obligations

Bonds .... . 21% 249, Among asset retirement obligations, recorded amounts on the consolidated

Stocks B 34% 26% financial statements

General account 29%, 31% A. Summary description of the asset retirement obligations

Other 16% 19% Obligation to restore to original condition, under leasing agreements for

""""""""""""""""""""" 0 2 land for operating facilities and for ATMs outside of the bank facilities,

Total 100% 100% obligation to remove toxic substances used at a portion of the operating
Note facilities and the administrative center, due to legal requirements, etc.
The expected long-term return on assets has been estimated based on the B. Calculation Method of Amount of Asset Retirement Obligations )
anticipated allocation to each asset class and the expected long-term The asset retirement obligation amounts are calculated by estimating the period
return on assets held in each category of use to be from 6 years to 30 years from time of acquisition, using a discount

rate of 0.0% to 2.0% based on the government bond yields as a reference.

C. Gains/Losses in total asset retirement obligation
(8) The assumptions used in accounting for the above plans are as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021

1) Discountrate: ............cccooceviiiiiiiinns. 0.4% 0.3% (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
2) Expected rate of long-term return on assets: ... 2.7% 2.6%
Balance at beginning of year ¥ 131 ¥ 169 $ 1,187
Increase in amount due to acquisition 0 - 2
27. Income Taxes of property lnt and equiprent
The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, Adustment due to the pgssagg of ime 0 0 4
2021 and 2020 are summarized as follows: Increase due to change i estimate 50 - 457
Reduction due to performance of 2 38 20

asset retirement obligations

2021 2020 2021 Balance at the end of the year ¥ 180 ¥ 131 $ 1632

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses ¥ 2,799 ¥ 2654 $ 25,283
Devaluation on securities 243 140 2,199
Depreciation 605 629 5,466
Deferred gains or losses on hedges 368 1,433 3,329
Other 1,883 1,785 17,015
Subtotal:deferred tax assets 5,900 6,643 53,294
Valuation allowance (Note1) (1,609) (1,432) (14,539)
Total:deferred tax assets 4,290 5211 38,754
Deferred tax liabilities:
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (6,581) (3,110) (59,446)
Net defined benefits assets (407) — (3,683)
Other (159) (149) (1,442)
Total:deferred tax liabilities (7,148) (3,259) (64,571)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥ (2,858) ¥ 1,951 $  (25,817)




29. Segment Information

1.

Outline of reportable segments

The Bank Group previously reported “Banking business” “Leasing business” and “Credit guarantee business”.

Reportable segments are components for which separate financial information is available and that are subject to periodic examination by the board of
directors to determine the allocation of management resources and assess performances.

The Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries consist of the Bank and 7 consolidated subsidiaries that are engaged in the financial services business that
includes mainly banking services as well as leasing services.

Therefore, the reportable segments of the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries comprise ‘Banking’ , ‘Leasing’, and ‘Credit guarantee’ which are
distinguished by the type of the business.

‘Banking’ includes deposit taking, lending, investment in securities and exchange services.

‘Leasing’ represents the lease business of Yamagin Lease Co., Ltd., one of the consolidated subsidiaries.

‘Credit guarantee’ is a credit guarantee business operated by Yamagin Guarantee Service Co., Ltd., one of the consolidated subsidiaries.

. Calculation method of ordinary income, profit (loss), assets, liabilities and other items by reportable segment

The accounting policies in Note 3, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, are adopted for the reportable segments.
Reportable segment profit corresponds to ordinary profit.
Ordinary income arising from intersegment transactions is based on arm’ s length prices.

3. Ordinary income, profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items by reportable segment
Year ended March 31, 2021 (Millions of yen)
Reportable segment
> 8 Other Total Adjustments fin aggg?(:tig:etﬁwint s
Banking Leasing Credit guarantee Total
Ordinary income
External customers ¥ 33,821 | ¥ 5917 ¥ 249 ¥ 39,988 | ¥ 1,246 ¥ 41,234 | ¥ (9) ¥ 41,225
Intersegment 760 97 698 1,555 257 1,813 (1,813) -
Total 34,581 6,015 947 41,544 1,503 43,047 (1,822) 41,225
Segment profit 4,329 205 686 5,221 205 5,426 (587) 4,838
Segment assets 3,115,372 17,028 6,043 3,138,445 6,082 3,144,527 (15,559) 3,128,968
Segment liabilities 2,961,124 13,425 2,970 2,977,521 3,978 2,981,499 (14,344) 2,967,155
Other items
Depreciation 1,676 8 (0] 1,684 2 1,686 — 1,686
Interest income 25,067 0 5 25,073 57 25,130 (685) 24,444
Interest expenses 1,327 56 - 1,383 20 1,403 (53) 1,350
Increase in property, plant and 2,070 34 0 2,106 0 2,107 — 2,107
equipment and intangible assets
Year ended March 31, 2021 (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Reportable segment
’ 8 Other Total Adjustments fin ag;gls(;ltiggrendem s
Banking Leasing Credit guarantee Total
Ordinary income
External customers $ 305495 |$ 53,454 $ 2,250 $ 361,200 [$ 11,255 $ 372,456 |$ (82) |8 372,373
Intersegment 6,867 879 6,305 14,051 2,327 16,379 (16,379) -
Total 312,363 54,333 8,555 375,251 13,583 388,835 (16,462) 372,373
Segment profit 39,103 1,859 6,198 47,160 1,857 49,018 (5,310) 43,708
Segment assets 28,139,939 153,814 54,591 28,348,345 54,941 28,403,287 (140,542) 28,262,744
Segment liabilities 26,746,678 121,266 26,835 26,894,780 35,938 26,930,719 (129,567) 26,801,152
Other items
Depreciation 15,141 72 1 15,215 21 15,237 - 15,237
Interest income 226,429 3 47 226,479 515 226,995 (6,195) 220,799
Interest expenses 11,988 510 — 12,498 182 12,680 (485) 12,195
Increase in property, plant and 18,703 315 8 19,027 6 19,033 - 19,033
equipment and intangible assets

Notes
1.
2.

Ordinary income is substituted for sales of companies in other industries. "Adjustments" are elimination of intersegment transactions.
"Other" represents business segments that are not the reportable segments and comprises business support service, data processing, credit card business, regional
trading company, venture capital business, etc.

3. "Adjustments" are as follows:

(1) Adjusted amount of ordinary income from external customers Minus 9 million yen is the adjusted amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts provision for
"leasing business" and "others".

(2) The 587 million yen adjustment for segment profit, the 15,559 million yen reduction adjustment for segment assets, the 14,344 million yen reduction adjustment
for segment liabilities, the 685 million yen reduction adjustment for interest income, and the 53 million yen reduction adjestment for interest expenses are elimina-
tions of intersegment transactions.

4. "Segment profit (loss)" corresponds to ordinary income (net) of Consolidated Statements of Income.
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Year ended March 31, 2020

(Millions of yen)

Reportable segment . Consolidated
Other Total Adjustments financial statements
Banking Leasing Credit guarantee Total

Ordinary income

External customers ¥ 36,686 |¥ 5887 ¥ 273 ¥ 42,847 |¥ 1,193 ¥ 44,041 | ¥ (0) ¥ 44,041

Intersegment 431 98 692 1,223 256 1,479 (1,479) —
Total 37,118 5,986 965 44,070 1,450 45,521 (1,479) 44,041
Segment profit 3,892 125 708 4,726 134 4,861 (226) 4,634
Segment assets 2,640,225 17,753 6,498 2,664,477 6,198 2,670,676 (17,557) 2,653,119
Segment liabilities 2,498,385 14,206 3,420 2,516,013 4,142 2,520,155 (14,743) 2,505,412
Other items

Depreciation 1,338 6 0 1,345 2 1,347 - 1,347

Interest income 25,351 0 4 25,356 67 25,423 (337) 25,085

Interest expenses 2,087 61 - 2,148 29 2,178 (62) 2,115

Increase in property, plant and 3,111 22 — 3,134 0 3,135 — 3,135

equipment and intangible assets

Notes

1. Ordinary income is substituted for sales of companies in other industries. "Adjustments" are elimination of intersegment transactions.
2. "Other" represents business segments that are not the reportable segments and comprises business support service, data processing, credit card business, venture

capital business, etc.

3. "Adjustments" are as follows:

(1) The O million yen reduction adjustment for ordinary income with respect to ouside customers is due to an adjustment for a provision of allowance for loan losses

in "other".

(2) The 226 million yen reduction adjustment for segment profit, the 17,557 million yen reduction adjustment for segment assets, the 14,743 million yen reduction
adjustment for segment liabilities, the 337 million yen reduction adjustment for interest income, and the 62 million yen reduction adjustment for interest expenses

are eliminations of intersegment transactions.

4. "Segment profit" corresponds to ordinary income (net) of Consolidated Statements of Income.

4. Related information

Information by service
Year ended March 31, 2021

(Millions of yen)

Loan Security investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from external customers ¥ 17,229 ¥ 10,414 ¥ 5910 ¥ 7,671 ¥ 41,225
Year ended March 31, 2021 (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Loan Security investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from external customers $ 155,625 $ 94,073 $ 53,383 $ 69,290 $ 372,373

Information about geographical areas is omitted because the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries conduct banking and other related activities in Japan without having foreign subsidiaries

or foreign branches.

Information about major customers is not presented because there are no customers having over a 10% share of ordinary income.

Year ended March 31, 2020

(Millions of yen)

Loan Security investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from external customers ¥ 17,616 ¥ 12,979 ¥ 5,887 ¥ 7,558 ¥ 44,041
5. Information concerning the impairment loss of fixed assets by reportable segment
Year ended March 31, 2021 (Millions of yen)
Reportable segment
Other Total
Banking Leasing Credit guarantee Total
Impairment loss 540 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 540 ¥ — ¥ 540
Year ended March 31, 2021 (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Reportable segment
Other Total
Banking Leasing Credit guarantee Total
Impairment loss 4,879 $ — $ — $ 4,879 $ — $ 4,879
Year ended March 31, 2020 (Millions of yen)
Reportable segment
Other Total
Banking Leasing Credit guarantee Total
Impairment loss 3 ¥ — ¥ — ¥ 3 ¥ — ¥ 3




30. Related Parties Information

Transactions with Related Parties
Transactions of the Corporation Submitting Consolidated Financial Statements with Related Parties
Directors and Major Stockholders (only in the case of individuals) etc. of the Corporation Submitting Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2021

(Millions of yen)

Name of Percentage of o
Capital or | Description | ownership of | Relation to | Description Balance at end
Category C?rlrr]]%?a\é etrc. Location | investment | of business | voting rights, | affiliated of Amount of Agc%unt of financial
o full narﬁz S contribution or job etc. owned (or | parties | transaction | transaction ame period
u owned by) (%)
Happy Yamagata Pig iron and L ] Loans
City, cast iron _ Credit oan o and bills
c . Pr(ondoL;thIr)wc. Yamagata 70 manufactur- customer funds 1.870 dis- 1,870
ompanies, Prefecture ing counted
etc. in which
Directors and Yamagata Manufacture ) Loans
their close | Happy Japan City, 73 of general | Owned directly Credit Loan of 1038 and bills 1038
relatives own | Inc. (note 3) | Yamagata machinery and 0.84 customer funds ’ dis- ’
a majority of Prefecture equipment counted
th?igf?ting Otokoyama Yamagata Sake Loans
4 City, Owned by, Credit Loan of and bills
I_Stgumutcﬁ’) Yamagata 35 Manué?ctur- directly, 0.02 | customer funds 73 dis- 66
- \Note Prefecture counted
. . Loans
Directors and Junichi Director of Credit Loan of and bills
close — - the Bank; - 39 ey 56
relatives Matsuda Attorne customer funds dis
y counted
Year ended March 31, 2021 (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Name of Percentage of o
company. etc Capital or | Description | ownership of | Relation to | Description Account Balance at end
Category | o n%ivié’ al's| Location | investment | of business | voting rights, affiliated of Amount of rame of financial
full nanL:e contribution or job etc. owned (or parties transaction | transaction period
u owned by) (%)
Happy Yamagata Pig iron and L p Loans
City, cast iron _ Credit oan o and bills
c : Pr(ondoLithIr)wc. Yamagata 632 manufactur- customer funds 16,890 dis- 16890
ompanies, Prefecture ing counted
etc. in which
Directors and Yamagata Manufacture ) Loans
their close | Happy Japan City, 659 of general | Owned directly | Credit Loan of 9380 | andbills 9.382
relatives own | Inc. (note 3) | Yamagata machinery and 0.84 customer funds ’ dis- ’
a majorit_y of Prefecture equipment counted
th?igf?gng Otokoyama | Yamagata Sake Loans
Shuzou Co City, 316  |Manufactur-| OWned by Credit | Loan of 661 | andbills 598
Ltd. (Note 4) | Yamagata or directly, 0.02 | customer funds dis-
. Prefecture counted
Loans
Directors and s Director of ; ;
and bills
close Junichi _ _ the Bank: _ Credit Loan of 353 S I 511
lati Matsuda Att customer funds is
relatives orney counted
Notes

1. The terms and conditions of the transactions and the policies governing decision making for the terms and conditions of such transactions are the same
tion amounts are avarage balances.

2. At Happy Product Inc., Mr. Keitaro Harada, a director, and his close relatives hold the majority of voting rights.
3. At Happy Japan Inc., Mr. Keitaro Harada, a director, and his close relatives hold the majority of voting rights.
4. A majority of the voting rights of Otokoyama Shuzou Co., Ltd. are owned by Director Gisuke Ohara and his close relatives.

Year ended March 31, 2020

as for other customers. Transac-

(Millions of yen)

Name of Percentage of o
company. et Capital or | Description | ownership of | Relation to | Description Account Balance at end
Category ; in%ivisc/j’ I *| Location investment | of business | voting rights, affiliated of Amount‘of o of financial
° full nanquz s contribution or job etc. owned (or parties | transaction | transaction ame period
u owned by) (%)
Companies, etc. in which Yamagata Loans
Directors and their close Sgﬁ;gza&a City, 35 M ar?u?‘lgectur- Owned by, Credit Loan of 34 and bills 45
reatves omnamapry || (Note 5) | Yamasata or directly, 0.02 | customer funds dis-
of the voting rights . Prefecture counted
. Loans
Directors and e Director of ’ ;
close Junichi _ _ the Bank: _ Credit Loan of 41 and_b_llls 57
lati Matsuda Att customer funds dis
relatives orney counted
Notes

1. The terms and conditions of the transactions and the policies governing decision making for the terms and conditions of such transactions are the same as for other customers. Transac-
tion amounts are avarage balances.

2. A majority of the voting rights of Otokoyama Shuzou Co., Ltd. are owned by Director Gisuke Ohara and his close relatives.
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31. Amounts Per Share

Amounts per share of net assets, net income and diluted net income, as presented below,
are based on the number of stocks outstanding at each balance sheet date and the
weighted average number of stocks of common stock outstanding during each year.

2021 2020 2021

(Yen) (U.S. dollars)
Net assets ¥ 495712 ¥  4.526.62 $ 44.77
Net income ¥ 87.50 ¥ 77.86 $ 0.79

Notes

1.

2.

The shares of the Bank held by the BIP Trust Officer Compensation are recorded as
treasury stock in the consolidated financial statements. The Bank's shares held by the
trust are included in the number of treasury shares deducted from the total number of
issued shares as of the end of the period for purposes of the calculation of net assets
per share, and the number of treasury shares deducted in connection with the
calculation of net assets per share at the end of the period was 70,000 shares
(85,000 shares at the end of the previous consolidated fiscal year). In addition, the
shares are included in the number of treasury shares deducted for the calculation of
the average number of shares during the period, for purposes of the calculation of net
income per share, and the average of the treasury shares deducted in calculating the
net income per share during the period was 75,000 (86,000 shares in the previous
consolidated fiscal year).

The basics of the calculation of the current net income per share is as follows.

The basis for the calculation of net income per share for the year ended March 31, 2021
and 2020 is summarized as follows:

2021 2020 2021

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Profit attributable
to owners of parent ¥ 2,852 ¥ 2,537 $ 25,769

Amount not attributable
to common stock - — —

Profit attributable to owners

of parent related to common stock 2,852 2,537 25,769
Weighted average

number of stocks of

common stock outstanding 32,604 32,594 32,604

thousand thousand thousand

Net income per share after adjustment for potentially dilutive shares for the previous
consolidated fiscal year and the current consolidated fiscal year is not stated because there are
no potentially dilutive shares.

32. Significant Subsequent Events

There are no applicable matters.



Non-Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of March 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets

Cash and due from DanKS .......oouiuiieiniii e
(07211 o Y= 1= PPN
Monetary claims bought ...
Money held iN truSt. ..o
SECUIMTIES vttt
Loans and bills discounted
Foreign exchanges .......c....ccoeeeen...
Other assets......coovviiiiiiiiiininin.

Leased assets, Net ...
Construction IN ProgresSs .....vvviiiiiiiiiiiiiii
(01 7Y G 7= P
Intangible assets..
Software ........

Prepaid pension costs
Deferred tax @SSEtS  ...i.euiuiiiin i
Customers' liabilities for acceptances and guarantees ..................
Allowance for 10aN IOSSES ... .uuiutiuiii i

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities

DIEPOSITS  + ettt
Negotiable certificates of deposit .........c.cooviiiiiii
Call MONBY ettt e
Payables under securities lending transactions ...................oooe.
BOIrOWEd MONEY .. .oniiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Foreign exchanges .......c..ccccevvenne..
Other liabilities  .....cccoeveveiiiiiinin.
Provision for bonuses for directors
Provision for share payments of board incentive plan ..................
Provision for reimbursement of deposits ..........ccocoiiiiiiiiii
Provision for contingent 0SS «...uiiiiiiiiii i
Deferred tax liabilitieS .....covviieiii
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation
Acceptances and guarantees
LiADIEIES v vttt e

Net Assets

Share Capital ..o.eoniiie
Capital SUMIUS e e
Retained @armingS . ...oueuiiuiiii i
Treasury Shar€s ......c.o.ooiiiiiiiiiiiii i
Shareholders' EQUItY «....oeeeeeeineiiieieieieie e

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities
Deferred gains or losses on hedges ..........c.ccceeveenen..

Revaluation reserve for land.........coooviiiiiiiiiii i
Total valuation and translation adjustments ..............c.oooviii
NET ASSEES  tnttiiiit it
Liabilities and net assets ........coooovviiiiiiiiiiiii

2021 2020 2021
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
¥ 394,585 86,116 $ 3,564,133
1,465 1,310 13,238
7,272 7,768 65,685
1,261 481 11,398
902,416 758,994 8,151,177
1,748,110 1,721,894 15,789,995
774 2,491 6,999
31,303 30,232 282,749
15,183 15,235 137,143
3,849 3,793 34,769
8,320 8,782 75,152
12 12 115
1,658 1,082 14,977
1,342 1,563 12,128
3,519 3,540 31,787
3,315 3,335 29,945
203 204 1,842
1,011 1,518 9,139
- 1,108 -
16,764 17,736 151,431
(9,013) (8,921) (81,416)
¥ 3,114,655 2,639,508 $ 28,133,463
¥ 2,581,043 2,269,022 $ 23,313,553
84,934 105,211 767,181
1,992 19,589 18,000
8,318 65,505 75,136
253,265 7,980 2,287,651
36 29 330
10,072 11,441 90,982
22 22 203
96 101 872
122 168 1,105
290 304 2,627
3,006 - 27,157
1,156 1,270 10,445
16,764 17,736 151,431
¥ 2,961,124 2,498,385 $ 26,746,678
¥ 12,008 12,008 $ 108,468
4,932 4,932 44,554
124,548 122,658 1,124,996
(3,142) (3,173) (28,389)
138,346 136,425 1,249,629
15,052 6,854 135,959
(839) (3,267) (7,585)
972 1,109 8,780
15,184 4,696 137,154
153,530 141,122 1,386,784
¥ 3,114,655 2,639,508 $ 28,133,463
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Non-Consolidated Statements of Income
For the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020 2021

(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

36

Ordinary iNCOMe ....coooiieiiiiiiiiii ¥ 34,581 ¥ 37,118 $ 312,363
INTErESt INCOME  verrieii e 25,067 25,351 226,429
Interest on loans and diSCOUNTS -+ vvvveeiniieriiiii 16,828 17,160 152,001
Interest and dividends 0N SECUrtIeS  «ceevrrrrerreiiiiiiiieiieiiiiiin.,. 8,064 7,990 72,847
Interest on call 10aNS - vvvvrriiii (4) 77 (37)
Interest on receivables under resale agreements — ---.oeeeieinnns (0) (1) 2)
Interest on deposits with banks «...ooovvii 89 12 809
Other INtEresSt INCOME -+ vrveeireeiii e 89 111 810
Fees and COMIMISSIONS «««xvrereartatettttttiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeteeeeaaas 6,353 6,466 57,384
Fees and commissions on domestic and foreign exchanges:----- 1,553 1,563 14,033
Other fees and COMMISSIONS -+« +cevvrerrrteainttiiieiiiaieiieeaaaes 4,799 4,902 43,350
Other ordinary iNCOME +++vxvvvvvieiiiiii 1,381 3,798 12,478
Gains on foreign exchange transactions  «-«-.ovevveeiiiiiniiinn, 129 - 1,172
Gain on trading account securities transactions -«-«---..oeeevvennns 0 0 1
Gain on sales Of PONAS +vvveerrriiiiiiii 1,251 3,797 11,304
O el INCOME vt ettt e 1,779 1,502 16,071
Recoveries of written off receivables -.-ccvevvevieiiiiiii 3 3 31
Gain on sales of equity securities «---vcoeeviiiii 1,639 1,375 14,804
Gain on money held in trust 4 — 41
10 117 132 124 1,193
Ordinary EXPENSES -:vrveeersvrrrttesiiiitttnii 30,252 33,225 273,259
INtEresSt EXPENSES  «ovvivvrririiiiiii 1,327 2,087 11,988
Interest oN depOSItS «vvveverviiiii 494 643 4,462
Interest on negotiable certificates of deposit  «----vvovvviiiiiniins 12 20 112
Interest on call MoNEY  «+vvvvviiiiiiiiii 37 7 337
Interest on payables under securities lending transactions ------ 54 486 491
Interest on borrowings and redisSCouNts -+« wvovveeieiiiiiin, 68 137 617
Interest expenses on interest rate SWaps «-+--+xoveereririiiiin. 660 705 5,966
Other interest eXPenSESs -« -« vvvvrviiiiiii — 87 —
Fees and commisSioNs payments «-««coeeviiiiiiiinn, 3,340 3,354 30,170
Fees and commissions on domestic and foreign exchanges.----- 332 341 3,000
Other fees and COMMISSIONS  «ccvveerrrteeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 3,007 3,012 27,170
Other ordinary EXPENSES -« xtevererriiiiiiiiiiiii 2,560 4197 23,128
Loss on foreign exchange transactions -« -« cocovevviiiiii. — 246 —
Loss 0N sales of DONAS «vvvvervriiiiiiiiiii 2,085 1,773 18,840
Loss on devaluation of bONAS  «cceevvrreeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 150 — 1,354
Expenses on derivatives other than for trading or hedging:-------- 324 2177 2,933
General and administrative eXpensSes  «--:vveeveiiiiiiiii 21,137 20,474 190,923
Other EXPENSES «cvvrenttntntttititit i 1’887 3,111 17,048
Provision of allowance for loan 10SSeS -+--+vvvvvriiiiniiiiiiiins 688 1,679 6,214
Loss on sales of equity securities «--oooveeviiiii 438 762 3,964
Loss on devaluation of equity securities «----oeveeieeiiiii. 196 0 1,770
1)1 1= 564 668 5,099
ordinary profit ............................................................... 4,329 3,892 39,103
Extraordinary iNCOME -« -« -vvveveninini — 3 —
10 ) 13T — 3 —
Extraordinary [0SSES — «-ovevieiniiiiiii 574 169 5,188
Loss on disposal of non-current assets ««--.vceveveiiiiii 34 165 309
IMpairment 10SS  +vvvvvvviiiii 540 3 4,879
Profit before income taxes..-.-.--cocveveieiiiiiii 3,754 3,727 33,915
INCOME tAXES ~CUIMENT +++vveeeeiiii i 1,554 962 14,041
Income taxes -deferred - oovvvreiieiiiiii (532) 612 (4,809)
INCOME tAXES vvvverrrnnnnreeteteeiiiite e e e aaiiiaeseeeaaaaiaaaeaaans 1,022 1,575 9,231
Profit oo 2732 ¥ 2151 $ 24,683
Amounts per share: 2021 2020 2021
(yen) (yen) (U.S. dollars)
Profit 83.81 66.02 0.75
Net assets 4,708.23 4,329.58 42.52



Directory

Headquarters:
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 623 1221

Financial Markets Division:
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 634 7547
Fax:+81 23 625 7185
S.W.LF.T.: YAMBJPJT

Foreign Exchange Offices:
Head Office
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 623 1221

Yonezawa Branch

1-5, Monto-machi 3-chome, Yonezawa 992-0039,Japan
Phone:+81 238 22 2010

Nagai Branch

11-14,Sakae-machi, Nagai 993-0084,Japan
Phone:+81 238 88 2105

Sagaechuo Branch

2-33, Chuo 1-chome, Sagae 991-0021,Japan
Phone:+81 237 86 1141

Tendo Branch

9-1,Higashihoncho 1-chome, Tendo 994-0026,Japan
Phone:+81 23 653 3355

Shinjo Branch

2-16, Hon-cho, Shinjo 996-0027,Japan

Phone:+81 233 22 2461

Tsuruoka Branch

1-13, Hon-cho 2-chome, Tsuruoka 997-0034,Japan
Phone:+81 235 22 5530

Sakata Branch

10-1, Hon-cho 3-chome, Sakata 998-0043,Japan
Phone:+81 234 22 7222

Tokyo Branch

Yurihonjo
Akita district: 1 branch

Yamagata
Yamagata district: Head Office s dai
and 69 branches 17 endal

Miyagi district: 6 branches
Saitama
Saitama district: 1 branch

Koriyama

Fukushima district: 1 branch
Utsunomiya

Tochigi district: 1 branch

Tokyo
Tokyo district: 1 branch

(Total: Head Office and 80 branches)
(As of March 31, 2021)

3rd Floor Meidi-Ya Kyobashi Bldg. 2-8, Kyobashi 2-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 104-0031,Japan

Phone:+81 3 3567 1861

Bank Data: (As of March 31, 2021)
Date of Incorporation: 1896

Authorized Stocks: 59,670,000

Issued Stocks: 34,000,000

Number of Shareholders: 8,160

Number of Employees: 1,232

Cherries
Cherries are a special product of Yamagata Prefecture.
Stylized cherries are used as the symbol of The Yamagata Bank, Ltd.
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“ THE YAMAGATA BANK, LTD.

Yamagata, Japan

Printed in Japan
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